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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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KEY DATES
Annual Results Announcement 24 March 2021
Final Dividend HKO0.15 cent per share

2 June 2021

(before 4:30 p.m.)

3 and 4 June 2021
(both days inclusive)

— Latest Time to Lodge Transfers

— Book Close Dates

— Record Date 4 June 2021
— Payment Date 18 June 2021
2021 Annual General Meeting 27 May 2021
— Last Time to Lodge Transfers 21 May 2021

(before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This annual report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholders”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company
highly recommends the Shareholders to receive electronic copy
of this annual report. Shareholders may have the right to change
their choice of receipt of our future Corporate Communications
at any time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company’s
Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY

ES P

For the year ended 31 December

BEDRASIRLFE
HK$ million 2019 2020 Changes
B & /8T B
Revenue 4110 2,627 -36.1%
LN
Gross profit 1,264 840 -33.5%
E7
Gross profit margin 30.8% 32.0% +1.2pp
EHE B &
Adjusted EBIT* 268 160 -40.3%
R EBIT
Net profit 90 34 -62.2%
AR
Earnings per share HK1.33 cents HK0.50 cent -62.4%
BRAEF Al Al

* Adjusted EBIT represents earnings before interest and tax; adding back the depreciation charge on the self-owned
flagship store, which reflects the Group’s core operating performance. The Group has fully adopted the HKFRS 16, which a
depreciation of right-of-use assets associated with lease was recorded in both financial years.

K AEEBITAMERBAARTN  MEARBEEEEENNEER URBASEZFELERR A5EE2HEMNEE
B mEEREIH PMEMBRFECHGREERBANTERAREENE -
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ACHIEVEMENTS

The 6th Investor Relations Awards 2020
20204588 JE B E B BAR K 48

Best Investor Relations Company (Small Cap)
REREHMIR AT — DK

Best Investor Presentation Material (Small Cap)
AERE H N T — DKk

Best Investor Relations Team (Small Cap)

IR BRI R — /N

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

AU B B AR

10 Years+ Caring Company
10 4+ P SR B 1R

Elite Brand Awards 2020
8 5L i R 2020

Elite Watch & Jewellery Award
jE v G G T B K 8

Oriental Daily News
HT5 H

R R

The Outstanding Brand Awards 2020
B REE 2020

Luxury Watch Retailer and

Supreme Brand Award

HEESRAT K FRILAEREE

Economic Digest

R

Hong Kong Service Awards 2020
202047 v IR 5k 4

Luxury Watch Retailer

B ST

East Week
IR T

The 3rd Golden Bauhinia Women
Entrepreneur Award

B R AR

Business Excellence Award
wLHR A B4 AR

Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur Association

(s pikiste 24
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) announces
the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

In the face of a tough operating environment as a result of
COVID-19, the Group’s total revenue decreased by 36.1% to
HK$2,626.6 million (2019: HK$4,110.1 million) during the Year.
Revenue from the Hong Kong market dropped significantly
to HK$1,256.6 million (2019: HK$2,760.7 million), as the retail
market remained difficult due to weak tourism, and accounted
for 47.8% (2019: 67.2%) of the total revenue. On the other
hand, with mainland China substantially containing COVID-19,
domestic economic activities returned to a relatively reasonable
level, and there was an expansion of inbound consumption due
to restrictions on outbound travel, resulting in a robust rebound
of the Group’s mainland China business. Hence, revenue from
the mainland China market increased by 39.7% to HK$783.3
million (2019: HK$560.6 million), accounting for 29.8% (2019:
13.6%) of the total revenue. In respect of product segment, the
sales revenue from watch and jewellery segments decreased
to HK$2,056.2 million (2019: HK$3,158.2 million) and HK$570.4
million (2019: HK$951.9 million) respectively, accounting for
78.3% (2019: 76.8%) and 21.7% (2019: 23.2%) of the total
revenue.

Gross profit decreased to HK$840.1 million (2019: HK$1,264.0
million), while gross profit margin increased by 1.2 percentage
points to 32.0% (2019: 30.8%). The Group actively adopted
all necessary measures to mitigate the adverse financial
impacts, including but not limited to rental reductions, staff
cost reductions, and driving sales by various means. During
the Year, the net profit decreased to HK$34.0 million (2019:
HK$90.0 million), while a net loss of HK$113.7 million was
recorded for the six months ended 30 June 2020, indicating a
turnaround during the second half of the Year. Basic earnings
per share was HK0.50 cent (2019: HK1.33 cents). The Group
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.15
cent (2019: Nil) per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MARKET REVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 was a catastrophe to all countries
around the world. Entry restrictions and quarantine measures
were implemented in various countries, putting a halt to all
individual and business travel plans. During the Year, the total
number of visitor arrivals to Hong Kong decreased by 93.6%,
to only approximately 3.6 million. Hong Kong'’s luxury sector
suffered a major blow, and Hong Kong retail sales of jewellery,
watches and clocks, and valuable gifts decreased by 54.0%
year on year.

By contrast, despite nationwide shutdowns of factories in early
2020, COVID-19 was relatively under control in mainland China,
hence it reported 2.3% growth in GDP during the Year. With life
slowly returning to normal in mainland China in the second half
of the Year, while outbound travel was still restricted, domestic
consumption has gradually regained momentum.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading retailer of European-made internationally
renowned watches, together with self-designed fine jewellery
products under its own brand, “Emperor Jewellery’. The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since July 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group has established a retail network of around 100
stores across Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China, Singapore
and Malaysia, as well as several online shopping platforms.
With a history of over 75 years, the Company carries a
balanced and comprehensive watch dealership list. The target
customers range from middle to high income groups worldwide.
The Group’s core strategy focuses on maintaining its position
as the leading watch and jewellery retailing group in Greater
China, coupled with an eye on expansion beyond the region.

Presence in Prime Retail Locations

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 101 (2019: 104)
stores in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China, Singapore and
Malaysia. The distribution was as follows:

AEBZTZERKRENI0REH  BLE
B ORFT - BRI - BN M FREE - IR
REREREBYMFE - ARRHEARATSH
B RESGHME2ENEERRE BREE
BRBLREERZHNPESHRAAL - KE
BeZLRESRFENATELRE[AL
BRMAKRETEESENMA - RISRERPE
VA SN [ A4 e 3R 7% ©

BEHREFHEWB

202012318  ZEBREE - BFT -
Bl - Franig & SRR A 101 (20194 -
104)EESH EommT:

Number of stores

EHEAE
Hong Kong BB 30
Macau P! 5
Mainland China RNCTIA: ) 57
Singapore 7 0 3% 8
Malaysia SR P 5p 1
Total By 101

These stores include self-branded “Emperor Jewellery”
stores, dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch
stores (with or without jewellery counters).

Over the years, the Group has built a strategic sales network
in prime shopping areas as well as well popular residential
districts in Hong Kong, Macau and mainland China. The Group
also successfully expanded its presence in Singapore and
Malaysia, to enhance its footprint and brand exposure beyond
Greater China.

Solidifying Leading Position

With its long-standing history, the Group is a trusted partner of
and maintains solid relationships with major Swiss watch brand
suppliers, thereby continuing to hold a comprehensive portfolio
of watch dealerships and maintaining its leading position,
especially in Hong Kong. The Group actively participates in
co-marketing campaigns and events with brands, highlighting
new products and connecting the customers in a personalised
way.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Enhancing the Jewellery Business

The Group offers premium quality “Emperor Jewellery’
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship. The spectacular “Emperor Jewellery’ range
features a variety of precious gem stones with a key focus on
diamonds and jadeites. “Emperor Jewellery”’ unveils unique
collections of exquisite designs that embrace and nurture
different clusters of customers.

During the Year, the Group launched “Fortune Bracelet’,
comprising a rice-shaped gold charm on a traditional Chinese
cord bracelet. Each piece of gold rice is delicately engraved
with the Chinese characters for “peace”, “health”, “happiness”
or “luck”, to symbolise love and fortune, as well as a better
future. In order to enhance engagements with local consumers,
the Group launched many promotional and VIP events. Given
the importance of social media in product promotions, the
Group will continue to showcase and promote its products on
mobile apps and social media platforms.

SNAPSHOTS OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
DURING COVID-19

COVID-19 has brought tremendous influence to the macro
economy. The business development of the Group during
COVID-19 are summarised as follows:

- The total numbers of visitor arrivals to Hong Kong and
Macau declined by 93.6% and 85.0% respectively during
the Year, while the Group’s segmental revenue of Hong
Kong and Macau markets only decreased by 54.5%
and 47.2%, demonstrating the resilience of local luxury
consumption demand, and the effectiveness of sales and
marketing strategies of the Group.

- Entering the second half of the Year, with mainland China
substantially containing COVID-19, the Group’s mainland
China business recorded a strong rebound, and achieved
year-on-year growth of 39.7% in revenue.
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The public health measures caused disruptions to the
production of watch and jewellery products, especially
during the first quarter of the Year. Overall, supplies of
watches and jewellery subsequently returned to normal.

The total number of stores remained at more than
100 throughout the Year. The Group continued closely
monitoring the market situation and assessing individual
store performances. Although the tourism and retalil
sectors in Hong Kong were hit hard by COVID-19, there
was only one store closure in Hong Kong during the Year.

To tackle the challenges arising from COVID-19, the
Group promptly implemented a number of mitigating
measures, including but not limited to rental savings, staff
cost reductions, and driving sales by various means.
The Group also closely monitored inventory levels and
adjusted the product portfolio in accordance with market
responses.

To safeguard our customers’ health, the Group has put
additional efforts and resources into in-store precautionary
measures — such as monitoring body temperatures and
providing hand sanitisers; and salespersons are required
to complete health declaration forms from time to time.

With increased usage of online platforms to make
purchases by consumers during COVID-19, it has
reshaped consumer behaviour. In view of this, the
Group is enhancing its online platforms for its jewellery
products, and has already established a presence on
popular platforms such as JD.com, Tmall.com, and
Zalora. Meanwhile, the Group will continue liaising with
watch suppliers regarding potential online business
collaboration.

As there are uncertainties regarding travel restrictions
worldwide, the mainland China market will be an important
growth driver for the Group in the near future. The Group
will continue enhancing its strategic coverage in the
mainland China market and seizing opportunities ahead.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS

During the last quarter of the Year, the Group’s businesses
in the Hong Kong, Macau, and Singapore markets have seen
slight improvements, while the mainland China market saw
good progress in recovering from the earlier downturn. In the
meantime, various governments have been pushing ahead with
vaccination programmes, which will take some time to achieve
mass inoculation. Thus, it is anticipated that the global travel
restrictions imposed by various governments will remain in the
near future.

Considering the above-mentioned limitations, the Group
believes that domestic consumption within mainland China will
be an important driver of the Group’s business going forward,
given the strong pent-up demand and high purchasing power
of Chinese citizens. The Group will continue evaluating the
market situation and exploring development opportunities, in
order to strengthen its footprint in the mainland China market.
As for the Hong Kong, Macau and Southeast Asia markets
in which the Group has established a strategic network, they
are poised to benefit from the recovery of the tourism and
consumption sentiment riding on the reputation of “Emperor”
built over the past decades.

Looking ahead, the Group will adhere to its prudent approach
and strive to minimise the downside risks to which the Group
is exposed. The Group will closely monitor the inventory levels
and adjust the product mix accordingly, exercise stringent
control of cost expenses, and enhance the retail network
as opportunities arise, with an aim of maintaining steady
development of its businesses amid this unprecedented,
challenging business environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR e M o3 BT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as at 31
December 2020 amounted to HK$405.1 million (2019:
HK$239.9 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$638.7
million (2019: HK$790.9 million), resulting in a net gearing ratio
(calculated on the basis of bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents over net asset value) of 5.1% (2019: 12.3%).
The Group also had available unutilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$948.3 million.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$3,585.3 million (2019:
HK$3,539.4 million) and HK$1,027.3 million (2019: HK$659.3
million), respectively. Current ratio and quick ratio of the Group
were 3.5 (2019: 5.4) and 0.5 (2019: 0.6), respectively.

In view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2020, the Directors considered that the Group had sufficient
working capital for its operations and future development plans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has 706 salespersons
(2019: 819) and 159 office staff (2019: 234). Total staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) were HK$192.2 million
(2019: HK$313.9 million) for the Year. Employees’ remuneration
was determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well
as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EHRRFBITEANEZEE

CINDY YEUNG, aged 56, the Chairperson and Managing
Director of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, as well as the Chairperson of the Executive
Committee of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She joined the Group in
September 1990 and became a director of Emperor Watch
& Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an operating arm
of the retail outlets of the Group in Hong Kong, in April
1999. The Group has been under steering of Ms. Yeung
since then. She is responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, business growth and development and overseeing
different operations within the Group. She is a member
of the Supervisory Committee of Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Limited. Ms. Yeung is also the
honorary ambassador of “Because | am a Girl” organized
by a charity body, PLAN International Hong Kong. She
has over 30 years of experience in watch and jewellery
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yeung worked in
the sales department of Anju Jewelry Ltd.,, a US based
company engaging in trading of jewellery products. She
has obtained the qualification of the Graduate Gemologist
of Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and subsequently
graduated from University of San Francisco with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Science in Business Administration majoring in
Management, with emphasis on International Business.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHI FAI, aged 65, an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong has been involved in the management
of the Group since November 1998. He is a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong is also a director of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163)
(“Emperor International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor
Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor
Culture”) and Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code:
1711) (“Ulferts”), all being associated corporations of
the Company. Having over 30 years of finance and
management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from retailing
of watch and jewellery, manufacturing to wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services,
cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management as well as
media and publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man
Seung), aged 58, an Executive Director of the Company.
Ms. Fan has been involved in the management of the
Group since November 1998. She is also the Chairperson
of the Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director of
Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Culture
and Ulferts. Having over 32 years of corporate management
experience, Ms. Fan possesses diversified experience in
different businesses ranging from retailing of watch and
jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, property
investment and development, hotel and hospitality,
financial and securities services, cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment,
artiste management as well as media and publication. She
is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified
accountant, and holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EHRERBATHRNEZ R

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 58, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2016. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company.
Ms. Chan is a retired solicitor with over 20 years’ of
experience as independent non-executive director of various
listed companies. Currently, she is also an independent
non-executive director of Chinlink International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 997) and Emperor Culture. Ms. Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 57, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2017. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a
professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over
20 years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2000). Mr. Liu holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

CHAN WILING, YVONNE, aged 56, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in May
2017. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan previously
worked in two international accounting firms, Touche Ross &
Co. and Ernst & Young and engaged in accounting, auditing
and information security fields for 20 years. She graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University majoring in
accountancy and obtained a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Heriot-Watt University in Scotland. Ms.
Chan is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 68.

No interim dividend (2019: HK0.35 cent per share) was paid
to the Shareholders during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.15 cent (2019: Nil) per share for the Year to those
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on 4 June 2021 (Friday), subject to the approval of
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 27 May 2021 (Thursday) (“2021 AGM”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 6 to 13. Description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report from pages 51 to 55
and note 28B to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s
key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on the
Company are set out in the 2020 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 71.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2020, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$1,059,066,000 (2019: HK$936,114,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 164
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this report. Details
of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 80(1) and (3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa and
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene shall retire by rotation at the 2021
AGM to be held on 27 May 2021 (Thursday) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election
at the 2021 AGM has an unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into
or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Articles of
Association and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
adopted by the Company (“EWJ Securities Code”) were as
follows:

(@) Long position interests in the Company

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature offinterests

B R FEATBON HZ @ i

R2020F12A31H * EENAR ﬂZ?%‘ﬁ
BABRARBIREHBE EZBE (E&RF
MEEED((EHFREEED])EXVER)Z
B - BERGO REEFEPEE ARFIRIE
BHELEEIEGEI2GBETFHEFZ E LM
et 2 X LA R IR BEADRIRA 2
é%umﬁ 25 2 A2 AT B ([ 38 2 42 SR Tk
= F ﬁﬁﬁlmm THEARRRRBRZ
R ABRWT

(a) RAEQFAEZZHER
AREzEAR (KRG
Number of % of issued

Shares interested voting Shares

KEEmZ HERTHE

EEpnR B HEaktE
Ms. Cindy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of a private
BBt discretionary trust

ABIBERZAERIRA

igvig - g=| REERD %
4,290,850,000 63.29%

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery
Holdings Limited (“AY W&J Holdings”). AY W&J Holdings
was in turn held by First Family Advisors Trust reg. (“First
Family”) in trust for a private discretionary trust set up by Dr.
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”) under which
Ms. Cindy Yeung had deemed interest by virtue of being
one of the eligible beneficiaries.
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(b) Long position interests in associated corporations

of the Company
(i) Ordinary Shares

Name of Director

ESNR

Ms. Cindy Yeung
BHBLL

Ms. Fan Man Seung,

Name of associated
corporation

HEEEE8

Emperor International
5 2 B IR

Emperor E Hotel

REREERE

Emperor Culture
REVEE

Ulferts
Bt

Emperor International

DIRECTORS \REPORT

A

(b) RAATEBEEFAES

() Z&ER
Capacity/Nature of Number of % of issued
interests shares interested voting shares
2 g FERT
5/ REME ROBE BEREERG%
Eligible beneficiary 2,747,610,489 74.71%
of a private (Note)
discretionary trust (hi)
RABEELZ
AERE S
- ditto - 851,352,845 70.07%
-RE- (Notg)
(W)
- ditto - 2,371,313,094 73.80%
-RE- (Notg)
(W)
- ditto - 600,000,000 75.00%
-RAE- (Note)
(W)
Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%

Vanessa HEFE ExBEBA
BEBELL
(i) Debentures (i) EREF

Name of Director

ESfE

Name of associated

corporation

BELEER

Amount of
debentures held

Capacity/
Nature of interests

Bt/ EEME FEEREESH

Mr. Wong Chi Fai Emperor International Interest in a controlled HK$2,000,000
BLELE HEFE corporation 2,000,000/ 70
NEEHEE R
Note: These Shares were ultimately owned by the respective Hat: ZEBRGIIBAELABGBRET

private discretionary trusts. Ms. Cindy Yeung had
deemed interests in the same shares by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such private
discretionary trusts.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 May 2018. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are summarized and set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at
no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the following persons
or corporations (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO ("Dl Register”) were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

Capacity/Nature of interests

B EmtE

A

FoAth N 5 BB A e HH B B A Jie oy 2

MEMEBSFTHIARAZSTHRAENA > B
2020F12A31H r KhEEH ARA ZEITH
ANEBSN » AT AT AE AR {7 sk A8 RE AR 15
FHEIHERANEEERECHERRE
BEREHERNEICIEATHEZ S LM
(R EBRECLMACEIEAERAT

Emperor W&J Holdings Beneficial owner
REFBHERKEER ESBEAA

AY W&J Holdings
B KERKBEIER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REZEHEE 2 # =

First Family Trustee of a private

discretionary trust
WABRBRELEZZFTEA

Dr. Albert Yeung
HBEL

Founder of a private
discretionary trust
ABBEFEZEIZA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
BE/N2 2+

Interest of spouse
A 48 &

Brandes Investment Partners,
L.P.

Investment Manager
RE KR

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Cindy Yeung

had deemed interest as set out under Section (a) of “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware
of any person or corporation (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, #HHRR S - Kk GHZERER

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS KB AL 5
IN SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions BHEBRERS

RARFER  AEEZERARFBEEALCE
ERLHRETTIINXZEETESER
HEAXZTEEREREEE A ELS:

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company and certain Director(s) had material interests,
directly or indirectly, in such transactions:

1. Master Leasing Agreements 1. HBHEEG=
Date .24 May 2018 H 53 : 20185 A 24H
Parties (1) EIHL Agreement: The Company RIAT () REBRWBE: ARQF

and Emperor International =R =Nl
(2) EEH Agreement: The Company

(2) HEREAE R -
and Emperor E Hotel N

RAI N R EIREEE

N

Nature

(Emperor International and Emperor
E Hotel are collectively referred to as
“Emperor International Group” and
EIHL Agreement and EEH Agreement
are collectively referred to as “2018
MLAC(s)”)

:Each of 2018 MLAs sets out the

framework of the terms governing

(REEBEREEREEE
MW REEREEIMEE
Y NSE SR
1% &% T 1820184 2 HH & 17
)

=1 D B2018F AT E R bR

B2 R & B R2018F

all existing and future tenancy/ 5H24H E2021F3H318 H
licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy MmEESE THAEWER
Transactions”) regarding leasing of HEmmE(BETEEHE -

certain office properties or other BEMIIBE) METZH
properties (including retail shop, BERARAKRBE Hi#

signage or signboard space) from
Emperor International Group for
the period from 24 May 2018 to
31 March 2021 with aggregate
tenancy annual caps being set
at HK$216,000,000 (for Emperor
International) and HK$6,000,000 (for
Emperor E Hotel) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020
("Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 S $£ 2k 90 7 B4 5
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Pursuant to the 2018 MLAs, relevant
member(s) of the Group and any
member(s) of Emperor International
Group may from time to time enter
into any definitive leasing agreement
in relation to any Tenancy Transaction
(“Definitive Leasing Agreement(s)”).
The terms of each of Definitive
Leasing Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms which
are no less favourable to the Group
than terms offered by independent
third parties. The terms and rental
shall be subject to arm’s length
negotiation and determined based on
the condition of the properties and
with reference to the then prevailing
market rents on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and
permitted use.

The aggregate amounts paid/payable
in respect of the Tenancy Transactions
with members of Emperor International
Group during the year were as
follows:

Emperor International HK$73,297,000
Emperor E Hotel HK$2,834,000

As the Company, Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel
were all indirectly controlled by the
respective private discretionary trusts
which were all set up by Dr. Albert
Yeung who is the deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company, Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel
were deemed as connected persons
of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated
under the 2018 MLAs constituted
continuing connected transactions of
the Company. Ms. Cindy Yeung, a
Director of the Company, has deemed
interest in the transactions by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries
of the respective private discretionary
trusts of which each of the Company,
Emperor International and Emperor E
Hotel were being held.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 #f < W .

DIRECTORS \REPORT

A

RIF2018F A E W - &%
EEEKE AR RESERE
B (E f] 5 B 2 &) 7] A B Bt A A7
HEXSGETMEMEXBER
A(EAEEBH]D - FER
HE W= 2 FRIE —RB XK
REBRTBERBLE=T4T
REB 2 RRETIL - R &% 7E
TRERNFREEHE  LRE
RZEMEARR N2 ERBRE
E - EENMFARZEZDE
ERTMISHLMETE °

RETZEN BN EER
ZEEWT

w2 B 73,297,000 7T
HEIRLAE 2 834,000 T

HRALE REFERRRS
IREGBED AR A BLARIBIGE
AIHERRARAETER
RONGE LRI MEES
Rt R & EH AR BB 14AE -
52 BRI R 2 IR E AR
RARRBZ@EANL - It
RIZE2018F AHE WA B ETT
ZRPBRARB T ERE
RP e WRARREEHHR
HERFBBEARA  REHK
KRREREBELEBEBMLA
RMBEERERTEZAZ—
BREERNZEXSHTHEA
R o



DIRECTORS” REPORT

o

Effective (1) EIHL Agreement: 9 August 2018
Dates

(2) EEH Agreement: 2 August 2018

whereupon the Aggregate Tenancy
Annual Caps had replaced all the
then annual caps previously obtained
by the Company for the Tenancy
Transactions

Announcement : 24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

Circular 17 July 2018

With the upcoming expiration of the 2018 MLAs, the
Company entered into new master leasing agreements
with Emperor International and Emperor E Hotel on 3
December 2020 to regulate arrangements for Tenancy
Transactions between the parties for a successive
term of 3 years from 1 April 2021. As all conditions
precedent had been fulfilled on 2 February 2021, the
new aggregate tenancy annual caps shall take effect
from 1 April 2021. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 3 December 2020 and 2
February 2021, and the circular dated 24 December
2020 for details.
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2. Consignment Agreement with Dr. Albert Yeung

The Group may at its discretion make consignment
arrangements with Dr. Albert Yeung and his associates
and sell the consigned items at its retail shops as the
Directors may think fit and beneficial to the Group.

Date

Parties

Consignment
Period

Consignment
Annual Cap
for the Year

Consignment
for the Year

15 November 2019
(1) The Company

(2) Dr. Albert Yeung, the father of
Ms. Cindy Yeung (a Director of
the Company)

1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022

HK$50,000,000

During the Year, a jewellery
item with consignment value of
HK$15,000,000 from Dr. Albert
Yeung's associate was recorded.
The Group had applied the same
purchasing and retail pricing policy
and mechanism to this item as those
normally adopted in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the
Group. No sale of such item was
made during the Year.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions
as shown in item (8) are disclosed continuing connected
transactions (“Disclosed CCTs”) and that the Company had
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s Disclosed CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the Disclosed CCTs
of the Group as set out from pages 24 to 27 of this Annual
Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the Auditor’'s Letter had been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(“INEDs”) had reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the
Auditor’s Letter and confirmed that these transactions had
been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms

that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 3.6% (2019:
1.4%) of the total turnover of the Group. The Group’s five
largest suppliers contributed to approximately 95.9% (2019:
85.3%) of the purchases of the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the above major customers and
suppliers of the Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of INEDs
are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which
ensures a clear link of business strategy and a close
alignment with the Shareholders’ interest and current
market best practice). Remuneration should be paid with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive
Directors, internal equity of employment conditions
across the Group and applicability of performance based
remuneration. The Director’s fees are paid fees in line with
market practice. No individual should determine his or her
own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’s responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performances as well as market pay level.
Remuneration package includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad-hoc rewards,
share options and other competitive fringe benefits such
as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals in the
Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 31 to 59.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation
amounting to approximately HK$60,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cindy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees
of the Company.

The Board of the Company has adopted various policies to
ensure compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had fully
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code except
with the deviation from code provision A.2.1 which requires
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and not be performed by the same individual.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised six
Directors (three Executive Directors and three INEDs) who
possess the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the
business of the Group. The biographies of the Directors
are set out on pages 14 to 16 of this report under the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Executives” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Cindy Yeung (being
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group) has also been
appointed as the Chairperson of the Board who provides
the Board with strong and consistent leadership while
at the same time leading the management on effective
planning, formulation, implementation and execution of long-
term business strategies of the Group. The Directors have
considered the issue of balance of power and authority
of the Board and believes the current structure (having
strong independent elements in the Board, delegation of
authorities to the management, supervision by the Board
and Board committees) can properly address the potential
issue on power concentration. All Directors, who bring
different experiences and expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and
that adequate, complete and reliable information is received
by the Directors. The Board is of the opinion that the current
Board structure functions effectively and does not intend to
make any change thereof.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized
experience and expertise in legal, accounting or auditing
fields who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at Board meetings.
They are appointed for an initial term of two years which
is renewed automatically for successive term of one year
subject to early termination with written notice being served
by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the
Articles of Association of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considered each of them to be independent by reference to
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
INEDs had been expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications of the Company that disclose the names
of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of success of the
Group in the interest of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance
of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated powers and authorities to
carry out the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group, formulate business policies and make decision on
key business issues. The Executive Committee shall have
all powers and authorities of the Board except the following
matters as set out in a “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board”™

° determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

° approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

o declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

° approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;
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° approving publication of the announcements for
notifiable transactions (except for discloseable
transactions in relation to lease transactions
recognizing the right-of-use asset according to HKFRS
16 “Leases”) under the Listing Rules;

° approving non-exempt connected transactions/
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (other
than those transactions took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by
the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under
the Listing Rules;

° approving proposed transactions requiring
Shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules;

° approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

° approving the establishment of Board committees;

° approving policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, including but not
limited to risk management policy, remuneration policy
and corporate governance policy;

o approving financial assistance to Directors;

o ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

° approving such other matters or transactions as
specified by the Board or as thought fit by the
Executive Committee or as required by all applicable
laws, rules and regulations from time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a
Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
the Directors, duty of disclosure of equity and business
interest in the Group and such induction materials will also
be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon
their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.
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The Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training. During the Year, each Director had participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars/workshops/reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors

ESHR

Ms. Cindy Yeung
E;‘%/U\ﬁj:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai
'HESERA

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
BEERL L

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
[RIE% XL

Mr. Liu Hing Hung
BEHRE

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
REXLL

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relations) among each other.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of any legal action against the Directors.
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Topics of training covered by all Directors

FEESEREZBIEE

Corporate governance
THEER

finance

Bt 1%
industry-specific
1T%HE#A

regulatory
BE 2
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the

Year is set out below:

A1 S8 10 i

ESCHERAREBRA
AFEEESHFE T GRZBRAOT:

Number of meetings attended/held

CORPORATE GOVERNANCEWREPORT

HEEE ET8ERY
2020
Corporate Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance Executive General
Board Committee Commitiee = Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting
tEER 2020 &
Name of Directors EE £ % ERZES FMEEE REZES ZEE® HTZEE BAFAg
Executive Directors
HITES
Ms. Cindy Yeung (Note 1) 77 - - - - 6/6 11
BRBRL (K1)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 77 - 2/2 - - 6/6 11
BEBLE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 717 - - 11 11 6/6 11
R (M2
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Note 3) 77 3/3 - 11 11 - 11
BRiEX Lt (W i23)
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Note 4) 77 3/3 2/2 - 11 - 11
BEEEEN #4)
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (Note 5) 717 3/3 2/2 11 - - 11
BER LT (WH5)
Total number of meetings held: 7 3 2 1 1 6 1
BTgREzA8:
Notes: B i -
1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 1. WITZESXR
2 Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 2 TtEERLZEEER
3 Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 3. REZBESXR
4. Chairman of the Audit Committee 4. BEZEE®ER
5 Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee 5 FTHEEEXE

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance
with code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company
and is satisfied that each Director has been spending
sufficient time in performing his/her responsibilities during
the Year.
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals. The Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the company secretarial team for ensuring that the
Board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
meeting agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board
in consultation with other Board members. Board meeting
notice was sent to the Directors at least 14 days prior to
each regular Board meeting. For all other board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. Board papers and related
materials which provide appropriate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors and relevant committee members at least 3 days
before each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
(on other agreed period) to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of
such minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are
open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director
will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in
which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material
interest and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum
present at such Board meeting. INEDs, who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the transaction
are present at that Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.
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All members of the Audit Committee and majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson
of the Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan
Man Seung, Vanessa. The primary duties of the
Executive Committee are (a) formulating business
policies and making decision (including entering into
transactions) on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group; (b) making
and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning,
investment and operation strategy of the Group; (c)
discussing and approving any financial, borrowing,
charging and guarantee commitment to be made or
on behalf of the Group; (d) approving any transactions,
including discloseable transactions, exempt connected
transactions and non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; (e) approving any publication of relevant
announcement for discloseable transaction in relation
to lease transaction recognizing the right-of-use asset
by the Company as lessee according to HKFRS 16
“Leases”; and (f) having all power and authorities
as that the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal
Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by
the Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.
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Audit Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems.
The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 (“Pervious Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2020;

i. reviewed with the senior management and
finance personnel the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

ii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group
for the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment
of external auditor at the 2020 annual general
meeting (“2020 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed
the independence of the external auditor and
approved its engagement.
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing Hung,
both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being an
Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on (a) the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held two meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and made
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

i. reviewed the remuneration structure/package of
the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their
specific packages.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 19 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne, both being
INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being the
Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
(a) reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy; (c) determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and identifying
potential candidates for directorship; (d) assessing
the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the time
commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election
or re-designation of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The Nomination Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board,;

il reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on
time commitment in performing their duties as
Directors; and

iv. ~made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2020 AGM.
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Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy
aims to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest
sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated
to be appointed as Director that will bring to the
Board against the objective criteria, with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board that would
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy
of the Group. It aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and
the nomination procedures for (i) nominating candidate
as new Director to fill the casual vacancy on the Board;
(i) making recommendation to Shareholders regarding
any Director proposed for election or re-election at
general meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders
on election of new Director.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 19
March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of
five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
(Chairperson of the Committee) being an Executive
Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Mr. Liu Hing
Hung, both being INEDs, a representative from
company secretarial function and a representative from
finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is available on the website
of the Company. The primary duties of the Corporate
Governance Committee are (a) reviewing the policies
and practices on corporate governance of the
Company (“Corporate Governance Policy”) and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings in the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and
made recommendation to the Board;

il reviewed
compliance with
requirements;

the policies and practices on
legal and regulatory

iii. reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group;
and

v.  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved
by the Board, plays an important role in supporting the
Board for ensuring good information flow within the Board
and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures are
followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on
general duties and obligations of Directors and good
corporate governance issues, and has facilitated induction
and professional development of the Directors. She has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly complied
with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EWJ Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions on no
less exacting terms than the required standards set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry to Directors, all of them
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code and EWJ Securities
Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to
prepare the annual consolidated financial statements of
the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules. The management has provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
consolidated financial statements which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgment and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable and ensured
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a
“going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view of the
state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management
had provided sufficient explanation and information to the
Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval. The auditor of
the Company had made a statement about their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

A.

Goals and Objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful
operation and day-to-day running of a business and it
assists a company in achieving its business objectives.
Internal control policies and procedures within the
Group are with the primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Systems”).

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group's
internal control measures and procedures covering
material controls, including operational, financial
and compliance controls; and (ii) risk management
functions in the principal subsidiaries of the Company.

Internal Control
(1) Governance Control
The control structure of the Systems is set out as
follows:
The Board
o responsible for the Systems and reviewing

their effectiveness;

° oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of Audit Committee;

° ensure maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems;

o define management structure with clear lines
of responsibility and limit of authority; and

o determine the nature and extent of significant
risks that the Company is willing to take
in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.
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Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes
the adequacy of resources, staff qualification
and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting
function;

review the nature and extent of significant
risks, and the Company’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external
environment (as detailed in Section C(2)
below);

review and discuss annually the significant
control failings or weaknesses that are
identified and raised by the auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditor
and make recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design and implement the risk management
policy and procedures duly endorsed by
senior management and the Board;

monitor the Systems and ensure the Systems
are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness
of the Systems in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise
them on the implementation of necessary
steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews
and agreed action plans to the Audit
Committee and the Board on regular basis.

(2) Operational Control

During the Year, the management had analyzed
the control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein
as follows:

Approach taken: The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff,
reviewing relevant documentation of the
internal control system and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design
of the Group’s internal control system,
providing recommendations for improvement
and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the Systems have been reported
to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition and ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records that are in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules
and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial that are information for internal use
and/or external publication.
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Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the
business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Company’s
business such as raw materials, inventory,
products, customer information system and
human resources. It also tracks audit trails
in the authorization system, under which
permissions and responsibility of authorization
are clearly identified and adequate records
can be maintained in the Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Such
reports and analysis of each segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on regular basis such that the
performance of each point of sales and each
product category can be easily accessible.

Information flow: The transparent
information flow alerts the management
promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons
with the same also acts as a detecting
device for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: Insurance coverage
on inventory is periodically reviewed by the
management for sufficient coverage, and
to ensure compliance with the terms and
conditions of the insurance policies. To
safeguard shops’ assets, security systems
are installed and properly maintained in good
condition at each shop. In addition, tests are
carried out on a daily basis to ensure the
proper functioning of the security system.
Daily stock count for each shop, regular and
surprise stock counts are arranged by the
shop managers and Finance & Accounts
Department respectively. Annual stock count
is also carried out by external auditors.

Quality control: Diamonds are either sent
to authoritative and reliable organizations
for assessment and certification or are
tested internally with our own professional
equipment to assure the quality fulfills good
standard requirement. In order to provide
assurance of high quality products and
service and to enhance the protection of our
customers’ interest, the Company had joined
several associations and schemes.
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(3

Proper authorization on sales discounts:
Discount policies are properly maintained
and controlled by electronic point-of-sales
systems. Discount policies and pricing
strategy are reviewed from time to time.

Financial Control

proper controls are in place for the recording
of complete, accurate and timely accounting
and management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly

financial results of operations against
budgets/forecast;
regular reports on revenue, trade

receivables’ ageing and debtors’ ageing and
internal financial reports are prepared to the
management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial
statements are provided to all Directors
which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’'s performance,
financial position and prospects in sufficient
details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/
forecast.
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Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with
the assistance of an internal work team
(if required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated, where
appropriate, for the attention of the Board.
The Board shall make timely decisions on
disclosure, if necessary, and take appropriate
measures to preserve confidentiality of inside
information until proper dissemination of
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which
shall be reviewed and monitored regularly
by the Corporate Governance Committee as
delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-
terrorist Financing Policy and Procedures
is established to set out the general framework
for combating crime against money laundering
and financing of terrorism. It provides
guideline to prevent the Group’'s employees
and clients/customers/suppliers/vendors/
contractors from being misused for money
laundering, terrorist financing or other financial
crime and has set out some indications of
potentially suspicious transactions/activities for
employee’ reference.
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C.

Risk Management

(M)

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated
by the Board and management based on (i) the
severity of the impact of the risk on the Group’s
financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which
risks can occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes
or controls that in effect eliminate the risk
entirely.

o Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed
to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss
scenarios.

° Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address
those that are not. Accidents and other
situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as
part of the effort to manage risks.

° Risk retention — The management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough that
the risk is acceptable level and no action
is required. The risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not
increase to an unacceptable level.
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(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified
through the process of risk identification and
assessment. Such significant risks of the Group
together with their respective key strategies/
control measures are set out below:—

a) Decline in tourists’ arrivals and
consumption demand resulted from
downturn in economic and unstable
social conditions and also outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19,
SARS

Facing the unfavourable market situation, the
Group:

° proactively manages the Group’s
geographical presence and develops
alternative sales channels including
e-commerce and also explores new
on-line payment solution;

° optimises business operations and
shops establishments in Hong Kong
and Mainland China;

° develops market diversification beyond
Hong Kong market; and

o decisively takes stringent cost control
measures including human resources
streamline plan, negotiation for rental
concession, retail network optimisation
exercises including shorten business
hours, shops closure plan, etc.

b) Damage to brand name and reputation

In addition to advertising and promotional
efforts in strengthening our brand image, the
Group has also given much attention to:

° register of brand name and major
jewellery product collection names;

° conduct customer service training and
mystery shopper reviews to ensure
sales staff service standards;
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d)

° maintain product quality by various
means from vendor selection to quality
check upon delivery from vendors; and

° brand name infringements which are
followed up by legal department until
completely resolved.

Reliance on major suppliers and watch
brands

In fact, the Group’s success largely rides on
its relationship with the world’s giant watch
suppliers and top-tier brands. The loss of
key brands may adversely affect the Group’s
business. To cope with this, the Group:

o centralizes communication with major
watch brands suppliers within top
management;

° develops and maintains mutually
beneficial and long-term relationship
with all suppliers;

o continues to build up our own jewellery
brands; and

o arranges senior sales staff inspecting
all watches delivered to shops.

Excess and shortage of watch inventory

The Group strives to be leading retailer
in bands that have higher consumer
appreciation and consequently stronger
profit yield. In order to achieve this leading
position, we:

° maintain close business relationship
and communication with watch
manufacturers to strive for optimal and
timely supply; and

o systematically review inventory with
updated sales forecasts to determine
appropriate inventory level.
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Substandard design and production of
jewellery

The Group’s strategy is to yield higher gross
margin and avoid price competition with
other market players. As such, quality of our
jewellery and highly regarded designs are
vital.

° The Group maintains a high quality
design team with good market trend
knowledge, measured by effectiveness
of successful product design launched.

° Merchandising managers, design
managers, sales operation managers
and shop representatives review all
jewellery design before approval by
chief executive officer for production.

° Production vendors selection and
regular quality performance review
are conducted by merchandising
managers, technical manager and in
some cases jewellery design manager.

o Merchandising managers, technical
manager and in some cases design
manager inspect jewellery product
mold and first sample before bulk
production.

o All jewellery products must pass
through quality inspection by quality
control team and shop front sales team.

o Scanning of diamond by equipment
is used to avoid receiving synthetic
diamonds and procure diamonds from
international renowned suppliers.

o Higher value jewellery products are
tested by reputable and commonly
recognized third-party laboratories who
issue testing certificates.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5t S8k BR T A PR A ] )
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E# ¢

e)

A1 S8 10 i

TRHERENKARIRE
E

AEBZREDERRES
E I Kokt % B2 E A T 35 B 5
HFRFABBE - Bt &,
MOKELEERBEARXHE
SMRAHEEEE -

o AEEEFSKFE A
MmiBBE 2 RTHE
BX : Bhutt - BABK Th
BEm R A2 MR R

=
gz °

s MARERERERRT
BARE AL R - 5
ROBRBAE  RAK
2 HELEBELERE
R RmAR -

J R B 8 i@ iy 4% 32
R(EHDBER)HKER
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi?%ﬁﬁ
FETEHEERES
& o

e RRKEHLER  BHEEB
IR BT RE R(E
M BEMR)IKE RAE
BREREKRMEAN
E—HERm -

i Fﬁﬁfﬂiﬁiuuf}%//\
i on B L 15 B K % I 9
AIARHEER mE R
& o

e JFRHEREGEREEDO
DAt o W B & BB A
3 ) B8 ik 0 2 44 7 R
BED -

e ZEAEFEERELER
AZE=NERERE
BEERSZHREEMmETT
ORI B AR R E o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(o REREE &

f)
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h)

Stable supply of raw materials at fair
price

In order to maintain our timely replenishment
and new product launch, we secure reliable
sourcing by:

° adopting systematic vendor selection
process; and

° regularly reviewing and exploring more
attractive sources.

Stock loss or theft

Since our stock items are easily concealable,
the Group places very much attention on
safeguarding them with all practicable
measures as follows:

CCTV monitoring and back up;
o daily stock-take at shops;

° procedures and approval requirements
for stock transfer, and use of security
guarded service;

o security systems for stock locations;
and

° insurance coverage.

Shop location and rental expenses

o conduct adequate research and study
to ensure proper location selected; and

° perform feasibility study and scenario
analysis to ensure financial viability
on each new shop location including
renewal of lease contract.

Anti-money laundering

Non-compliance with applicable anti-money
laundering laws would adversely affect the
Group’s business and reputation. We shall:

° review compliance policies regularly;
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° enforce the relevant internal control
procedures in all shops and assist
sales personnel to be familiar with
“know your customers” approach;

o stay alert to the industrial practices
and co-operates with banks on case
investigation; and

o provide regular training to the staff.

j)  Cyber security risks

To mitigate cyber security risks, the Group
has taken measures as follows:

° the Company’s IT infrastructure is
regularly scanned and patched;

o risky external |IP addressees are
blocked;

o emails are filtered for spam and
malware;

° specialized ransomware/virus detection
software are installed in all computers;

° access rights to the Group’s systems
are strictly controlled and regularly
reviewed;

o training for personnel about dangerous
email attachments; and

o regular backups of data for recovery.

The Board will make sure that the risks facing by
the Company shall be reviewed regularly, and the
management will take suitable measures to deal
with them on ongoing basis.

Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness
of the Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit
Committee and the Board, upon reviewing the Systems,
were not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group’s operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Systems.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders.
The Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular
interim and final dividends (as the case may be) based on
the earnings attributable to its Shareholders after taking into
consideration of the factors including, inter alia, (i) cash flow
requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to
all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but
not limited to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“CO”) and the
articles of association of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’
communication policy and shall review it on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates
with the Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i)
the holding of annual general meetings (*AGM”) and
extraordinary general meetings, if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (ii)
the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim
reports and/or circulars as required under the Listing
Rules and press releases providing updated information
of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of
the Group on the Company’s website at https://www.
emperorwatchjewellery.com; (iv) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with
investors and analysts on a regular basis and participate
investor road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to
visit the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our
Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
available on the Company’s website and the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this annual report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantial separate issues, including re-election of
retiring Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for
the 2020 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and notices of other
general meetings were sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear
business days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2020 AGM and chairman/members
of the Board Committees and the external auditor had
attended the 2020 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company
Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting had explained the
procedures for conducting a poll voting during the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS" RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
CG Code:

Right to convene/Call general meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings may send a request to the Company pursuant to
Section 566 of the CO. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting,
and may include the text of resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A
request may be sent to the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form
and must be authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s).
Such request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and the Company Secretary will request the Board
to convene a general meeting within 21 days upon its
confirmation that the request is in order. Such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting and such notice must
include notice of the resolution.
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Section 568 of the CO provides that if the Directors do not
within 21 days as stated above to call a general meeting,
the Shareholders representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a general
meeting, but the meeting so convened must be called for
a date not more than 3 months after the Directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting. The meeting
must be called in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by
the Directors. The business that may be dealt with at the
meeting includes a resolution to be dealt with at the meeting.
All reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders of
this purpose must be reimbursed by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 615 of the CO provides that (i) Shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders; or (i) at least 50 Shareholders having a
right to vote on the resolution at the AGM may request the
Company to circulate a notice of a resolution to be properly
moved or is intended to be moved at that meeting. Such
request must identify the resolution to be moved at the AGM,
must be authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s) and
sent to the registered office of the Company for the attention
of the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form not later than 6 weeks before the relevant AGM or if
later, the time when the notice of AGM is despatched.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can
be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements
in accordance with applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), is
independent and has recommended the Board to re-appoint
it as the Company’s auditor at the 2021 AGM. During the
Year, Deloitte has rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/
payable to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered Ffi2 i iR 7§

Audit services 1% &t iR 7%

Non-audit services: 3F#% 8 R 75 :

A1 S8 10 i

1% Y il 2 g 57 M % T 4

EZZECEBRERBEER 2 EEMKE
BB B UERETBRETEH
BREZEBERBRME - BXLEEKE
RE ARBZZEMESBEMR &5t
MT(EHNBEIAL  WYERAEESE
EHERZS R RAEFAS HEEH
BARRNBZIZEAE - RAFEARN  BHZM
AEEREZERELRSE FTIEXERE - M
AEBEEH B AFHRZBESHIOT:

Fees paid/payable
B ERE A

HK$’000
FTET
3,403

— Agreed-upon procedures for continuing connected transactions

SERERFIOHERF

— Review of preliminary results announcement
BEHVFERERSE

20

10
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the *“Group”) set
out on pages 68 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

judgement,

o S % A% o 0

MREBEXFEASAZEMITNEXH G+
ERAHHGEAVBRRTRERNER °
AEZBEITRBEREREAV B RREIE I
EEEMBUTEKRER  MAERtEEES
BERER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

HAREREHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMTUNEEAREREH

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

WK - BEERR G AR EEEER B EFE

We identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key
audit matter due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
and the increased inherent estimation uncertainty
pertaining to the assumptions and estimations in the
impairment assessment of the cash-generating units
("CGUs").

HRHNEREEE  ARBMTEME BREREE
UREREEENRENFERSBREREREER B
A&ﬁiﬁi S ([ReEEBLM]DRETHFHR

R NGB R GG HEE LM -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management considers each
shop as a separate identifiable CGU. Determining
whether property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are impaired requires the management’s
estimation of the recoverable amount which is
determined with reference to value in use of each CGU
identified with impairment indicators.

WNGREBREMFIRIBFAEE  EBERASHE
FEEREBAIHBNRCEFENL - BEEWE HER
BREARGAEEERTEERME BEEEBERYAK
Bl RBETHE  ZAEFE2LZRBRERERETH
EReELBUNEREEREST -

In estimating the value in use of each of the CGUs,
key inputs used by the management included discount
rate, sales growth and gross margin in the cash flow
projections.

R AR E A B EREE - T8RS AN
REABERESRE HEMERALREEAN
EFE) -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets included:
Rz BEITEBE - B kR
WEFEZEFEHE:

RiBANEREEEDN

e Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of reviewing and evaluating impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets;
ERERER LA EYE  BELR
REEENRENEZIEF:

&4 A B fE

e FEvaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, including sales
growth and gross margin through assessing the
reasonableness of forecasted future cash flows by
reference to the historical financial performance
and future business plan of the Group with
consideration of the impact of COVID-19
pandemic as well as industry trend;

BBE2E BEEENBEMBERRMARKREBT
B UWEBHMBRERBRITEBY  FhX#E
BEREREEXANBR  ETEEBBIEE
BAARERENABUEMNHEERRENE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREXER

o S % A% o JHL (42

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMTUNEEARERER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
WF BERREUREFEEZEL B ETFIE

As disclosed in notes 4, 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2020 the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets subject to impairment assessment
were HK$1,612,656,000 and HK$4,636,000
respectively. During the year, impairment losses
of HK$6,990,000 and HK$8,951,000 have been
recognised relating to property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, respectively.
BANER A BTSRRI 554 - 13K 14FTHH EE - R2020F12
ABTEETRENENYE HERREBAREBE
BEEMNKREES 5 A1,612,656,0007% 7T K%4,636,000/%5
ToRERN DRlEYE  BIRREARERESE
7 16 8 /96,990,000 7T 128,951,000 8 ST R BEEHE D
HER -
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Involving our internal valuation experts to assess
the discount rate applied underpinning the
discounted cash flow models by performing
re-calculations on and evaluating the
reasonableness of the underlying parameters
applied for determining discount rate, with
reference to market data and certain company
specific parameters;
BRAZBAITANEEERBRBZ2ETSHE R
ETRRIBGE2BETENAELTHEANE
FHRENERZ2 YN EE MR FHFEIRR
emERAMIRE;

Evaluating the reasonableness of and
reperforming the sensitivity analysis provided by
the management to assess the extent of impact
on the value in use;
AEEREBRENGBESTO GBS HHEE
REENTEREETTMG:

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
forecasted future cash flows by comparing
them to actual results in the current year and
understanding the causes for the significant
variances; and

BRRBEANARKRREREERNFENERER
ETHBRITBREFEAZENRE - KFHHE
WEEREN R

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
impairment loss calculation.

BmEREBRGENBRELEN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BMRELEE

Valuation of inventories — Goods held for resale

FE - HFIEBERm2IZE

We identified the valuation of inventories — goods held
for resale as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the judgement and
estimation associated with determining the amount of
allowance for inventories.

AZBMITHEEFE— FIEEERmZtER—HH
REZFHE REERHARYGESVBHREEBEM
ETOEE MPRBEETGEEREGSHEAM AT
KAt Et e

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories —
goods held for resale, it is the Group’s policy to review
the net realisable value of inventories periodically
with reference to the condition of the items and the
market condition. The management reviews regularly
the suitability of the allowance policy and the amount
of allowance for inventories that are based on the
estimation by considering factors as detailed in the
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the allowance for inventories. In addition,
the management also appoints an independent
professional gemologist to perform valuation on
certain jewellery items as reference for allowance
consideration.

RiEFFE— BrEERncBBeRy - H5E
ZHERSZEZEZEBREMRALTAEBRAFE A&
BRFEE - ERENERERGAVBRKRMT4FHEEH
FEREBZEBRRMIEZMAT  THRABEHEEER
ZHEBMRGEREBELRE LN BEEETEE %
BUBXBELETMUARE THREBRBETHEER
BEZEBEZ22ZE -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of inventories — goods held for
resale is HK$2,994,197,000, net of allowance of
HK$55,643,000, which represents 66% of the net
assets of the Group.

MR A PR RN F4RI5AT I T - 72020412 A31
H F8— #HEEEMmZREER2994,197,000/8
JC ¢ BHBR B 555,643,000 0 HER EEBEE
= F {8 266% °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMTUNEEARERER

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation of inventories — goods
held for resale included:

AZBETRHERE— BIEEERAm2HERS T
ZEFBRE:

e Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of reviewing and evaluating net realisable
value of inventories;

REEEERAAAAFENERFEAZERF:

e FEvaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies,
inventory realisation plan, ageing and conditions
of inventories;

SERTHN  BEMEAHEEEHN  TEBRXR
NERE FEERAE  FENKREK KRG
EREMRMANBEERR:

e FEvaluating net realisable value of inventories
assessed by management, on a sample basis,
with reference to the selling prices of similar
products;
ETHEIAATEHEEENEABREAE®D
ZHEBNFENA#RFE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
gemologist and obtaining an understanding of the
scope of work and the terms of engagement; and
AEBUYEXEBAGEM T8 e REHE
WEBHETEHERZBER R

e Understanding the valuation process carried out
by the independent professional gemologist on
selected jewellery items and checking the carrying
amounts of selected jewellery items to the jewellery
appraisal report to test that these items were
recorded at lower of cost and net realisable value.
BBV EXENE EMMAGEREKREER
MEFALRKEFERE T RBREEKREERSR
FREHENGBERF R E R SRR EZH
FEZBIEERLE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18§ 3 A% BTl A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'STREPORT

T8 3 A% S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit in the
independent auditor’s report is Ka-Lai Man.

resulting

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ak B 4H 2 B Ll 2 v W\ R R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TER FHET
Revenue N 5 2,626,609 4,110,117
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (1,786,545) (2,846,138)
Gross profit £ 840,064 1,263,979
Other income H b g A 6 8,195 5,952
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (677,227) (930,365)
Administrative expenses THRAX (89,265) (136,504)
Other gains or losses H b Uy 25 ok E5 48 (13,832) (26,802)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 7 (33,139) (56,936)
Profit before tax B B A1k A 8 34,796 119,324
Taxation BB 10 (803) (29,293)
Profit for the year F 2% 33,993 90,031
Other comprehensive income FEEME2ERKA
(expense) for the year (%)
Item that may be reclassified HEAEE D HE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bam ZHA -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEREE
translation of foreign operations N =R 42,098 (13,132)
Total comprehensive income for the AR A A JEL
year and attributable to owners of  FE 2K A 258
the Company 76,091 76,899
Earnings per share — basic BERAER - EX 12 HKO0.50 cent &l  HK1.33 cents %1l

) @ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 i &% 2k 20 A F 4 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
2020412 A31H

A o W 5 0K U R o

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 51 FERT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 13 1,717,896 1,850,058
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 365,022 565,779
Rental deposits Haeks 93,910 116,721
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEYIZE - R
property, plant and equipment REZENES 364 1,541
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEEE 23 10,896 13,086
2,188,088 2,547,185
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 3,029,949 3,148,350
Right to returned goods asset REREE 21 794 3,167
Receivables, deposits and JEWHRIE - e Rk 16
prepayments AN s 148,928 144,067
Amounts due from related companies & U [E & A &) 30 AE 22 561 3,924
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR RIS 17 405,111 239,909
3,585,343 3,539,417
Current liabilities REBAE
Payables and accrued charges EHRIE R EGE R 18 123,697 117,186
Lease liabilities HERRE 19 227,155 286,327
Contract liabilities e ON=Er 20 9,877 11,957
Refund liabilities BRAB 21 1,035 4,219
Amounts due to related companies A NRERE N ] 22 4,622 1,030
Taxation payable FEAT R 1R 22,184 65,683
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 638,693 172,900
1,027,263 659,302
Net current assets REBEEFEHE 2,558,080 2,880,115

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3¢ B &Sk Bk AR A F) X
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ak B T 5 IR DL i A%

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
2020412 A31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 F#& T FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RALTIE B (E 23 3,359 3,269
Lease liabilities HEaRE 19 193,691 332,970
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 - 618,034
197,050 954,273
Net assets EERE 4,549,118 4,473,027
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital Ji% 7 25 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves & 26 1,064,966 988,875
Total equity s 4,549,118 4,473,027

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 24 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

CINDY YEUNG
R
DIRECTOR
EZ

) @ ’ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5§ $k Bk 20 1 PR W]
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SAUBEEESHENRKETZE  THTT
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WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR
EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INTEQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H E2020F 12 AR ILF E
Share Merger Other Capital Translation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R & aftEE Hit EXfiE ELRE REEAN @5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
(Mt z26(a)) (FfaE26(b)) (i aF26(c)
At 1 January 2019 R201951618 3484152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (04.926) 1,394,586 4,457,143
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - 90,031 90,031
Exchange differences arising on BMEBNEBEE L
translation of foreign operations ERLES - - - - (13,132) - (13,132)
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZEFEIIBAE
income for the year & - - - - (13,132) 90,031 76,899
Final dividend recognised and paid 2018 F# R 2 REMK 2
for 2018 (note 11) GED - - - - - (37.287)  (37.287)
Interim dividend recognised and 20195 BRAZAHRE
paid for 2019 (note 11) (M 3E11) - - - - - (23728)  (23728)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 4318 3,484,152  (373,00) (26,195) 2,529 (38,058) 1,423,602 4,473,027
Profit for the year FE = = = = - 33,993 33,993
Exchange differences arising on BMEBMNEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations =R - = = = 42,098 = 42,098
Total comprehensive income for the ~ F & 2 K A 2%
year = = = = 42,098 33,993 76,091
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12 A31H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 4,040 1,457,595 4,549,118

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% S iS5k 2 LA 7 * g
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

P2 /\ =
WAL ER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RExK
Profit before tax B 15 B A 34,796 119,324
Adjustments for: i
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories GE(BERED) EE (1,189) 843
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- KRR EETE 141,590 136,679
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?ﬁ% 242,515 308,737
Impairment loss recognised in respect of M R R
property, plant and equipment HRZBEEE 6,990 3,406
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, plant HETHEE - Kes
and equipment hEBzEBEE 1,580 3,559
Gain arising from termination/modification of AR IE MNERFTEE
leases & (317) (561)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of right- MIEREEERER
of-use assets B B8 8,951 16,804
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for credit EEEIERE
losses (B HEm) 536 (3,837)
Interest income B U A (5,476) (4,572)
Finance costs B AR 33,139 56,936
Operating cash flows before movements in AtEEEREBAIZ
working capital KERESRE 463,115 637,318
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEZ R (g m) 151,370 (62,819)
Decrease (increase) in right to returned goods R & # & & k4 (4 hn)
asset 2,373 (705)
(Increase) decrease in receivables, deposits VJ%Z ciRe RIER
and prepayments IE(iE ) A (7,195) 24,141
Decrease in amounts due from related JE W B8 3 N R R IE R A
companies 3,363 1,110
Increase (decrease) in payables and accrued ST 5RIB K FE 5T & A 38 0
charges CRL ) 7,867 (159,474)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities BHBECHED)EM (2,080) 1,664
(Decrease) increase in refund liabilities K EECR L) (3,184) 804
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to related FH ?%L/ &) 3 I8 38 0
companies ) 3,592 (3,042)
Net cash generated from operations CEMSZHE 619,221 438,997
Income taxes paid Eﬁﬁfr i (42,383) (5,762)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMEZRESFE 576,838 433,235

) @ ’ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5§ $k Bk 20 1 PR W]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHEFLOWS

e R T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H E2020F12 A31H L F[F
2020 2019
Notes ~ HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Decrease in rental deposits Hekeszmd 24,054 4,579
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEE¥ZE - HE L REZ
plant and equipment EffEs (621) (863)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE BENXEZ
plant and equipment Fr 18 318 5 328
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE HBEREKHE
equipment (15,306) (563,655)
Interest received 24 F B 1,888 1,335
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETEBRB(FAZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HeFHE 10,020 (48,276)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEED
Dividends paid BARR B - (61,015)
Interest paid B F A 33 (33,139) (56,936)
Bank borrowings raised EERBCRITEER 33 129,515 1,079,071
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTEER 33 (281,949) (1,444,632)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE 33 (241,687) (286,531)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBHAZRERE
ACTIVITIES (427,260) (770,043)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN REeERESEEYWEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2) F58 159,598 (385,084)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT &{IzBREeRRESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 239,909 627,256
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ [ R & &) 7 3 £ 5,604 (2,263)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEESRRASEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, (ARTEHRAEEAR)
REPRESENTED BY BANK
BALANCES AND CASH 405,111 239,909

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3¢ B &Sk Bk AR A F) X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok B T B i AR M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

1.

GENERAL

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding
company is Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group Holdings
Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”) which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”"). The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) consider that its ultimate
holding company is Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI. The
address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessey Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material

HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 & % 2k 9 47 FiL A 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak o W 5 i PR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

E E2020F12A318 L F &

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. JE&H B 5T & 8845 5T & s B % i 7
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HI ([ v B 5 ok 42 R ) (48)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY AEERAIERNBEITEBMBRE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (Continued) R (&)

The application of the Amendments to References to RAFERRBE BN FHEERBZAME
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the HREETARKETE BN BREE
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no A AEERAFERBETFENITB
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and ROR KRR &SR G IS R &R T E A
performance for the current and prior years and/or on HEYTEEAFE -

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT EEMENMKRERZHTRKETES
NOT YET EFFECTIVE M |EER

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEWERFERBATEEME®KRE
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are M2 RSB E AN B REER :

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BRI REERE17H RBALH KA
and the related CHEN
Amendments'

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent BEREUBRELENE6Kr HERERD
Concessions* BRI A HENESRE

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the ERMBREENENR Y BOERMIRM?
Conceptual Framework? (EEIFN

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark EREMBREENEIR - FEREERE -

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Reform — Phase 25 EAGRIERE3% - F E RS
B BT 5 3R 5 2E 8

7% ERAVBRS
ERFEAFKRE BT R
HEBIEI6FE 2B A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution EARBREEDEI05H R KREEEHBELZ AR
HKAS 28 of Assets between BB G ERE8TRE 215 SEECEZEN

an Investor and its HEN EELESFE
Associate or Joint
Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities BRGHENEIRZ BRESHEAEREY
as Current or Non- EHES ERBREEB
current and related REFESTMAR
amendments to Hong &7 (20204F) !
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and BEAGFERE65 2 ME - WERRHE -
Equipment — Proceeds EHES BT BBRATH
before Intended Use? BT 15 3182

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost BB GENEITRZ BEAH—EITAN
of Fulfilling a Contract? EHES B B 72

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to ERMBEREENZ BAEMBREER
HKFRSs 2018 — 20202 EHEN 2018 £ 20204

M EE 2

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5 S8k BR T A PR A /] © o
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F- #} e .



'

’ @

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok B T B i AR M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 16 mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

AMENDMENT TO HKFRS 16 COVID-19-RELATED
RENT CONCESSIONS

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related
rent concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of
the following conditions:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021,
and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 & % 2k 9 47 FiL A 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

AMENDMENT TO HKFRS 16 COVID-19-RELATED
RENT CONCESSIONS (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on the
Group’s financial position and performance as the Group
does not elect to apply the practical expedient.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value-in-use in HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assetls.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #M#EHSMBHREMMKE L ERG

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been
consolidated from the date when the combining
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the consolidated entities are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #WEHFAMBHREMNKBLERE

CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND BrEUR ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EREHBE(E)
(Continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH KEHEREHZKRAE)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #M#EHSMBHREMMKE L ERG

CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, including customer loyalty
programme, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis, except for the
allocation of discounts and variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
including the customers’ right to return goods, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled using the expected value
method.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak o W 5 i PR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %456 W& MmENMKE R E R

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration
received from customers.

Sales with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of
the following:

(a) revenue for the transferred products in the
amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue
would not be recognised for the products
expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and

() an asset (and corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales) for its right to recover products
from customers and are presented as right to
returned goods asset.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND BrEUR ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EREHBE(E)
(Continued)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH KEHEREHZKRAE)
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
Variable consideration (Continued) B (E)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #M#EHSMBHREMMKE L ERG

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good
or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

LEASES
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #MM#E&HSMBHREMMKE L ERG

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %456 W& MmENMKE R E R

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5t S8k BR T A PR A ] -
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E# ¢

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AHBUR ()
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAEHBK(E)
(Continued)
LEASES (Continued) g (E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFELBRBA(E)
Refundable rental deposits AR [Bl.2 T & 1 &

EXNWAREMESES HIRER
BUMBRELNFSRZH TA(E
BB MEEFIRD AR - LW
BN EEE - NRERRTY
AAEENABRKE SBIEEN
KA FHAEBEEEMA

HERE

REERBRE  AEBKRZARX
NWEENFRERRARTEEE
BfE - REFEHENKRER - M
HERSOMEXHUET XK
E i AH &R B B R IE S & KN
KHEH o

“al =

HENKERE:

s RBEENHEREZLRETE
ZH X)L ] B U A B B

/m\ ’

. HM%EA%E Fe bt Er2EE
(NES E—%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁa,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
TEI %litt+u 5

e HNHREBEEERTAZEEMNX
Nezd:

e MWAKBEAESESITEE
B AIRBEEEENTRE
B R

o (HEHRMARESITHIEE
BEILHE AR ILEEEM
SIS 2 BT AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok B T B i AR M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %45 & W% @M R E R e

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in
market rental rates are initially measured using the
market rental rates as at the commencement date.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease payments change
due to changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #MM#E&HSMBHREMMKE L ERG

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability, less any lease incentives receivables,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %45 & W% @M R E R e

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs that are not directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
quality assets are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %456 W& MmENMKE R E R

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Government grants relating to compensation of
expenses are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented under “other
income”.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes, are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %45 & W% @M R E R e

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #HFEMBEMEMMRKIE KT RKE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND BrEUR ()
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EREHBE(E)
(Continued)
TAXATION (Continued) Pl JE ()

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #M#EHSMBHREMMKE L ERG

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration
is allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
is presented as ‘“right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. %456 W& MmENMKE R E R

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit
or loss.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indicator that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND TR ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EREHBE(E)
(Continued)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group
of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or a CGU for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND aHB R (&)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAGHEEE)
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUSs,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group
of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or CGU or a group of CGUSs) unit in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #M#EHSMBHREMMKE L ERG

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is determined
on a weighted average basis for gold and specific
identification basis for watches and other jewellery
items depending on the nature of the inventory. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to
their original condition, as required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, are recognised at the
date of inception of the lease at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to
restore the assets, estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND BrEUR ()
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EREHBE(E)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ST A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
15”). Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose obijective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #MM#E&HSMBHREMMKE L ERG

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL’) model on
financial assets (including trade receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from related companies,
rental deposits and bank balances), which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances.

For other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHBUR (&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAGHEEE)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EHTH(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets A EE R E
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND aHB R ()
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAGTBER(E)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EHTH(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) = G & E L 1E (FE)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk () 15 E = b 78 E 10
In assessing whether the credit risk has A& 1E B B b B V118 iR IA
increased significantly since initial recognition, RELBBELINE  AEBEY
the Group compares the risk of a default TR TAERERBHAEEED
occurring on the financial instrument as at Z B b H e T B R )6 i
the reporting date with the risk of a default RABEAEL AR EITLE
occurring on the financial instrument as at B o LETRZA R - AKE
the date of initial recognition. In making EZREBEBZEERTEME
this assessment, the Group considers both ¥ BIESANLBERKRASR
quantitative and qualitative information that BB A BE BT &R RA
is reasonable and supportable, including EEER -

historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost

or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken BEEgms  THEERBES
into account when assessing whether credit FEEENEEZEEUTER:

risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant e SEMIAZINE(AA)
deterioration in the financial instrument’s IANFEETRER L
external (if available) or internal credit EHegRERL:
rating;

e significant deterioration in external market e INEMSEEETEER
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant ElREE=RL MEE
increase in the credit spread, the credit BEEBELEM EBHA
default swap prices for the debtor; JIEEENEBERAE

ENE

e  existing or forecast adverse changes e HWE EMIAKLBIIRE
in business, financial or economic MIR RS e 78 Bl e H IR
conditions that are expected to cause a A& HIFH &R
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability EHBABERHEGER 26
to meet its debt obligations; HRE T &
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Mt MBERMEBEMKEAE RS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND aHB R (&)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAGTBER(E)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) &R (E)
Financial assets (Continued) cHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) = B & E 6 1E (4E)
()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () EZERBBERLINE)

e an actual or expected significant e EBRAREBEENER
deterioration in the operating results of HTEHIE KBt
the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse e BBHAMEZEE K&
change in the regulatory, economic, or BHEMRFER LK
technological environment of the debtor FHEHBREKRTHNE
that results in a significant decrease It EABHREBAE
in the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt BEHEBZEENDKRET
obligations. [ o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above Team LT 2 R0 - 8

assessment, the Group presumes that the BHNFEEHEIRI0K - A%

credit risk has increased significantly since ERBREEERRAVIIEER

initial recognition when contractual payments AREEEEN - RIEXAKE
are more than 30 days past due, unless EeBEBRZEMEREEL

the Group has reasonable and supportable e o

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes BE LA WEBIZAR
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not EHRAHETAAREEER
increased significantly since initial recognition w o AEBERKRREBIAZ
if the debt instrument is determined to have = B R B 9156 758 DA SR I £
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt FEILN o WMEBEATER -
instrument is determined to have low credit risk EEIEKEEERARK
if i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower FEEERE  NEAEKEYHRR
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual NERABEEEEE D - AR
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) EHABTEGHNREMER
adverse changes in economic and business F: RiEERAERRZ K
conditions in the longer term may, but will not HAR R Z ghaTge (B R &) Hl
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower BEFRABTEEHNRERE
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. Bz c MEBIAZA
The Group considers a debt instrument to LN EETRARIRER
have low credit risk when it has an internal or MIREEERARER) &
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as EHREZEBEILASAERERE
per globally understood definitions. Rk o
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(il

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

fm B B B R AR e R
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEAETBERE)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EHTH(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) = B & E 6 1E (4E)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables from contracts with
customers when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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by ERAH WMEHZEA
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
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WHBUR ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EAEHEEK(E)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EHTH(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) = G & E L 1E (FE)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and forward-
looking information, such as Gross Domestic
Product (i.e. GDP). Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Except for the trade debtors with significant
balances which are assessed individually, ECL
for other financial assets is considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past
due information and relevant credit information
such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

The Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the

grouping:

° Nature of financial instruments (including
trade receivables, other receivables,
rental deposits, amounts due from related
companies and bank balances);
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. LM BEmENMKE XE RS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AHBUR ()
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAEHBK(E)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) EHTH(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) = B & E 6 1E (4E)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) BHEEEEZTERER
(Continued) (&)
e  Past-due status; o BHRR:

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and BEBAZME - FAERRIT

E N
e External credit ratings where available. o  HNEEERA(INA) -
The grouping is regularly reviewed by ERETHESHANERE
management to ensure the constituents of BoE T EKEDEERSR
each group continue to share similar credit risk BMUZEERRBRER -
characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based on the MEWMAERZEREE 2K
gross carrying amount of the financial asset HREFE BRIFEZTREE
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in EXEERE FERHEBERLT
which case interest income is calculated based MEWAERZEREEZ
on amortised cost of the financial asset. B AGE -
The Group recognises an impairment gain or AEBEZAAEMBEMIA
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments ZEEEGABEERER
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the )E'E?ﬁ*’ ZIEEREZESEN
exception of trade receivables where the FIE SN P18 = R R SR ORL(E R
corresponding adjustment is recognised mﬁ%i@\ °
through a loss allowance account.
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2 A 1K A
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group SEER é?‘?ZTﬁﬁ*&*’éﬁnIETJ
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or BEMRITVEHNRHEZATEH R
as equity in accordance with the substance of the afE &*%EIE\ZE%T’EﬁiWEE
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a Bk ERDE -

financial liability and an equity instrument.
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O
N

a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related companies and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including discount rate, sales
growth and gross margin in the cash flow projections.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the assets
belongs, including allocation of corporate assets and
expenses when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of CGUs, for
which the relevant corporate assets and expenses have
been allocated.

Changing the key assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rate, sales growth and gross margin in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts. Furthermore, these key assumption
and estimates subject to greater uncertainties in the
current year due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19
pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility
in financial and retail markets and number of visitor
arrivals, including potential disruptions in the Group’s
retail operations as well as the volume of inbound visitor
arrivals.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
subject to impairment assessment are HK$1,612,656,000
and HK$4,636,000 (2019: HK$10,742,000 and
HK$30,661,000) respectively. During the year,
impairment losses of HK$6,990,000 and HK$8,951,000
(2019: HK$3,406,000 and HK$16,804,000) have been
recognised on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

ALLOWANCE FOR INVENTORIES

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories —
goods held for resale, it is the Group’s policy to review
the net realisable value of inventories periodically with
reference to the condition of the items and the market
condition. The management of the Group reviews
regularly the suitability of allowance policy and estimates
the amount of allowance for inventories based primarily
current market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies, inventory
realisation plan, as well as the ageing and conditions of
inventories to identify slow-moving items. In addition, the
management also appoints an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation on certain jewellery
items as reference for allowance consideration. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
the reporting period and makes allowance. When the
subsequent estimated amount of allowance for inventories
is less than the original cost, a material allowance may
arise. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
inventories for goods held for resale is HK$2,994,197,000
(net of allowance for inventories of HK$55,643,000) (31
December 2019: HK$3,103,458,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$55,942,000)).

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

As at 31 December 2020, a deferred tax asset of
HK$6,435,000 (2019: Nil) in relation to unused tax losses
for certain operating subsidiaries has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
of HK$63,608,000 (2019: HK$137,025,000) for certain
operating subsidiaries due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams for these subsidiaries. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. If the future profit streams
become predictable in the future, a deferred tax asset
will be recognised to the extent that future taxable profits
will be available in the future.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents sales of products to retail customers
and commission income from services provided.

For sales of products to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail shop. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

For commission income, revenue is recognised when
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods provided by the other party to the
customers at the retail shop.

All revenue are recognised at a point in time.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), the Executive Director and Chief Executive
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the locations of the operations. This is also the basis
upon which the Group is arranged and organised. The
Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are operations located in Hong Kong, Macau,
The People’s Republic of China excluding Hong Kong
and Macau (“PRC”) and other regions in Asia Pacific
(representing Singapore and Malaysia). The revenue
generated by each of the operating segments is mainly
derived from sales of watch and jewellery. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

All the sales of products and commission income are
completed within one year. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

E E2020F12A318 L F &
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K ERE R (&)
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and L‘/{Ti% REBWAREGZE ZAIZH R L
results by reportable and operating segment: LD ER AT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B £2020F12831BILEE
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Elimination  Consolidated
i Y FE TAHMBE bk e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TEr TE=x FER FER FER
Revenue WA
External sales INREEE 1,256,426 160,393 783,267 426,331 = 2,626,417
Inter-segment sales* DE S 42,681 6,637 - - (49,318) -
Commission income e A 155 37 = = = 192
1,299,262 167,067 783,267 426,331 (49,318) 2,626,609
* Inter-segment sales * DHEEE
are charged at cost N
Segment profit 7 B A 70,570 11,599 104,509 68,493 - 255,171
Unallocated other income & 7 B2 H 4 Wt A 8,195
Unallocated corporate AAOEEERT
expenses (181,599)
Unallocated other gains Ko B E A R
or losses S E 8 (13,832)
Unallocated finance costs & 73 B¢ B8 & A A< (33,139)
Profit before tax B 5 A& A 34,796
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA KsEE R (E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ2019F12A31H IEFE
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Elimination Consolidated
N R FE RAHMME i 84 ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TFTER FET FET FET
Revenue WA
External sales IR E 2,759,443 304,997 560,612 483,736 - 4,108,788
Inter-segment sales* D EpfEEE” 80,923 9,343 1,396 1,529 (93,191) -
Commission income Bael A 1,234 95 - - - 1,329
2,841,600 314,435 562,008 485,265 (93,191) 4,110,117
* Inter-segment sales * HEEEE
are charged at cost R A 8
Segment profit 7 #B 4 A 291,855 32,051 43,481 58,308 - 425,695
Unallocated other income 7 2 fig H b lg A 5,952
Unallocated corporate RO ERT
expenses (228,585)
Unallocated other gains or & 2 fid E 4 U 28
losses o E 1B (26,802)
Unallocated finance costs 7 % fit i & A A (56,936)
Profit before tax W 755 A1 4 7 119,324
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating ﬂ%ﬁ&&,ﬁ%% 2 802 & &1 SR B M RSP

segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned from each segment without allocation of
other income, corporate expenses including depreciation
charged on the self-owned flagship shop, other gains or
losses and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of
the Group’s segment reporting that are regularly reviewed
by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities are presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H E2020F 12 AR ILF E
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K ERE R (&)

(Continued)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hitb 7 #B & ¥

Amounts included in the measure of segment result: A HMEBTEZERE:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B £2020F12831HILFE

Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
B | HE TAHM®E AP B SE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERx TExT THE=R FERx FERx FEx
(Note b)
(Bt 3Eb)
Depreciation of property, — #1% - #2E &
plant and equipment RETE 116,031 5,864 7,758 6,159 5,778 141,590
Depreciation of right-of-  {FHEEETE
use assets 189,143 12,528 19,552 9,533 11,759 242,515
Expense relating to rented T S % 4
premises 2%
(Note a) (Mt 7xa) 33 = 66,882 5,767 945 73,627
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31H 1L FE
Other
Hong regions in
Kon Macau PRC Asia Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
=F R FE DAHMME AOW e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FETL TFART FAET FAET FAET
(Note b)
(BT D)
Depreciation of property, — #%¥ « B2
plant and equipment mENE 112,899 4,987 7,017 5,528 6,248 136,679
Depreciation of right-of-  {F AEEEHNE
use assets 250,357 17,890 19,725 9,132 11,633 308,737
Expense relating to rented A EWEEH
premises (Note a) 2%
(Mt 3Ea) 28,799 1,379 52,039 13,302 2,022 97,541

Notes: B 5% -

(@ In 2020, expenses relating to rented premises includes (a) 20204 - HAEEMEBABE 2 A RER
expenses relating to variable lease payments and rental AEHENRBEECAIRTRBES
expenses for contracts assessed not under the definition of BB mE R E1cR B ENBRM AT
lease under HKFRS 16. WmeEHzEeRE -
In 2019, expenses relating to rented premises includes R2019F - M EMEFB AL IER
expenses relating to other leases with lease term end within H AR ERERE AN B REER
12 months of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, F16 BT 12EANE RO ESH
variable lease payments and rental expenses for contracts 2AX -AEAENR UABRERSH
reassessed not under the definition of lease under HKFRS BHREENEI6HFEENEBEMEFTGE
16. MmeatzHeMx -

(b)  Unallocated represents amount used for office. by AOEEANRPAEZ2£% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA KsEE R (E)
(Continued)
REVENUE BY MAJOR PRODUCTS FEERZBA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from AEBERBETZEMERBZWA DT
its major products and services: N
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Sales of watch i & 5 8k 2,055,960 3,156,923
Sales of jewellery HEKE 570,457 951,865
Commission income — Watch Hael A - Eik 192 1,329
2,626,609 4110,117
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i EE R
Information about the Group’s non-current assets, ERREEMEHENUEERIAER
excluding rental deposits and deferred tax assets, FNBEE(HeReRELHEBEEER
presented based on the geographical location of the INZBEHRFBEINDAT
assets are detailed below:
As at 31 December 2020 712020512 A31H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Consolidated
BB - N PE SAHME &=a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FERT FHET TERT FERT
Non-current ERBEE
assets 1,946,835 31,634 83,829 20,984 2,083,282
As at 31 December 2019 2019F12 H31H
Other
regions
Hong Kong Macau PRC in Asia Pacific Consolidated
=6 B P9 PE Tp K H MR ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT FAT FAET
Non-current FRBEE
assets 2,251,540 56,364 74,711 34,763 2,417,378
No revenue from a single customer amounted to 10% or PRREFE  MEREFAEEE-—KFPZ
more of the Group’s total revenue for both years. Wash NEE W s 2 FE10% A I o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

E E2020F12A318 L F &
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HfkA
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income from bank deposits RITERF B WA 1,888 1,335
Interest income from rental deposits HeZkaf B A 3,588 3,237
Government grants I8 48 B 2,589 -
Others HAth 130 1,380
8,195 5,952
During the current year, the Group recognised MRAEE  AEBEp AN ERSZI5EH
government grants to HK$26,705,000 in respect of #) 473 Bf 7 52 X AT #/ B9 26,705,000/8 7T+ H
COVID-19-related subsidies, of which HK$20,193,000 720,193,000 7T 82 & 78 BT 1= 8 R
relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the MEIFEER  WEWAFENE LK
Hong Kong government and has been offset against staff RIKEH -
costs for the year.
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RbE A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Interest on bank borrowings WITEENE 16,652 36,253
Interest on lease liabilities HMEAERNE 16,487 20,683
33,139 56,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
8.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. Br Bl Al
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before tax has been arrived at after & & g & &I 2 0B (FFA)
charging (crediting): T3|EE :
Auditor’s remuneration =% A B &
— Current year - AFEE 3,433 3,576
— (Over)underprovision in prior years -BEFE(BEER)
BESE (220) 262
Cost of inventories included in cost of HEX AN ZFEK AR
sales (included reversal of allowance (BEEREFEEEE
for inventories of HK$1,189,000 (2019: 1,189,0007% 7T)
allowance for inventories HK$843,000)) (20194 - F & B 1#
843,000/ 7T) 1,777,163 2,836,628
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for credit 15 & &5 18 £ 5 (B 0 &)
losses 536 (3,837)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - HERREITE
equipment
— retail shops - TEEH 135,812 130,431
- offices o N 5,778 6,248
141,590 136,679
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE
- retail shops - ZEEH 230,756 297,104
- offices o NE 11,759 11,633
242,515 308,737
Staff costs, including Directors’ BIKAE BEEEWMe
remuneration (note 9(a)) (Fff 7F9(a))
- salaries and other benefits costs -HekEMENER 177,664 289,508
- retirement benefits scheme - BRRBE N E B R
contributions 14,534 24,419
192,198 313,927
Included in other gains or losses: T A E b Uy 35 Bk E5 4R
Impairment loss recognised in respect of G E WELRERR
property, plant and equipment 2 B BB 6,990 3,406
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FL{E FAEE EMR 2 RE
right-of-use assets & 18 8,951 16,804
Loss on disposals/write-off of property, HEEHEE - KSR
plant and equipment R EBE 1,580 3,559
Gain arising from termination/modification & &1t MERFTEL 2
of leases I = (317) (561)
Net exchange (gains) losses fE 5 (U zs) B5 18 5 58 (3,372) 3,594
13,832 26,802
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H E2020F 12 AR ILF E

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 9. #HH - FEITBAERKEBEME
EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE (A) EERFETHAR

B E2020F K 2019F 12 A31H IE4F
BZzENkENEEREZITHRA
BZMEFR0T:

Details of the emoluments paid and payable to the
Directors and Chief Executive for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E2020F12A831HLFE
Performance Retirement
related benefits
Salaries and incentive scheme
Fees  allowance payment contributions Total
BIRER
e FEREHR RARBEX ot 8l & st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT THERT THER THER THER
Executive Director and HITEERTE
Chief Executive THRAR
Ms. Cindy Yeung BHEELt 250 2,461 223 60 2,994
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai EEEBLAE 250 = = = 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa SB&ifF &+ 250 = = = 250
Independent Non-executive BIFHITES
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene fRER &+ 220 = = = 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung B I 220 - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne MERZLT 220 - - - 220
1,410 2,461 223 60 4,154
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F12 A31H L F[F
9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 9. HH - FHETBABREEMSES
EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Continued) (A) EBERFEFTHRARE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31H IEFE
Performance Retirement
related benefits
Salaries and incentive scheme
Fees allowance payment contributions Total
RIKEF
e FHeREN RREZHRI FT &% mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET FHT FHET
Executive Director and HITESERTE
Chief Executive THAR
Ms. Cindy Yeung BB at 250 3,285 1,200 60 4,795
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai ELELE 250 - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa S2&ilEx+ 250 - - - 250
Independent Non-executive BIFHUTES
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PRER Lt 220 - - - 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BE®EE 220 - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne RER LT 220 - - - 220
1,410 3,285 1,200 60 5,955

@ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 i &% 2k 20 A F 4 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, one (2019: one) was Director and Chief
Executive whose emoluments are included in note
9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2019: four) individuals were as follows:

Ak o W 5 i PR R

HE S FEOSBRABREEWMS

(4&)

(B) EE
AEBZRANZSHFMNEES  —
fZ(2019F : — () AEERF E1T
BAB - BEZH M P L
Bf3E9(a) » 2 T PUML (20194 « PUfir)
ZEHB TR

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#& T FET

Salaries and allowance e MoEEL 5,593 5,253

Performance related incentive RERERX

payment 650 800
Retirement benefits scheme RAKAE B ET B R

contributions 274 193

6,517 6,246

Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZHFHER LT -
Number of employees
EBE A

2020 2019

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t 21,500,0007% JT 2 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% Jt £2,000,00078 7T 2 2

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

The fees paid or payable to the Chief Executive,
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors shown above were for their services in
connection with their services as directors of the
Company.

The salaries and allowance, performance related
incentive payment and retirement benefits scheme
contributions paid or payable to the Executive Directors
and Chief Executive shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group.

The performance related incentive payment is a
discretionary bonus determined based on the financial
performance of the Group.

No Directors or Chief Executive waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments in the years ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Group or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5 85 8£ 2R 21 A R A 7

i 25 -

(i) LASHIENETETBRAER #
TEERBIUIFATESZHET)
BREREEARFEETMREMZ
RIERE -

(iy LHRENIEHRTEEREET

BMABz#HS K2R REEBHH
KRR R A a8 RS AR
EEAEEEBmMRR ZREE

7

e

(iy FRRBEF L TIRAEEZ BHx
REEZBIBEEA -

(iv)  # E2020%12A31H Kk2019F12 A
IBLEFE BMEESFHIFETH
AEMEXREREEAMME -

(v) EZE2020912A318 K&2019F12A
S1HIEFE « A% BB & T [ A
SEEFK AN ERFNES XM
TS - ERMARERZ KM
é;zg%fémﬁiéb CSERBER
JHEE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

‘@’



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#3638 B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
B E2020F12A31B IEFE
10. TAXATION 10. BLIH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
The tax charge (credit) for the year FARBEZHFER)
comprises: BiE:
Current year: REE
Hong Kong BB - 24,596
Macau R - 1,415
Singapore b3 9,286 8,969
9,286 34,980
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BAEFE(BERE) BE
AR
Hong Kong BB (5,894) 61
Macau B P (4,855) -
Singapore b0 - 21
(10,749) 82
Deferred taxation (note 23) i 3E B 18 (P 5223) 2,266 (5,769)
803 29,293

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at
12% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3k 5 85 &k Bk 27 A it 4 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is
25% for both years.

BiIH (4)

RIEFBECXMABHIE(REMEHRZE]D
REEMBHREZEBBRE - AAREF
Bz HEARNMIEFE ZHER25%

R PTE MR B EFE 2 f &
AR M IR I E24% 5T E - MM EFE
N ARARRMB AR L ERFERA
TEATAERTEN Bt EHRS
KEDFAEHELEE -

Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Malaysia Income Tax has been made as the
Company’s subsidiary did not have any assessable profit
arising from Malaysia for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 23. BT IE 2 B R M 23 o
AEERBRGEER REME2EKA
WERPIRZ BB A M E R -

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before tax B 15 B A 34,796 119,324
Tax charge at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate  1£16.5% 2 & /& |15 &1
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) ot R B 2 B IR
(20194F : 16.5%) 5,741 19,688
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AT X 2 T F &
tax purpose 20,795 17,827
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax WABARMMA G E
purpose (2,410) (1,563)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MIB AR R EH MR EAERE
operating in other jurisdictions REZARAMEZZE 56 (638)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised W ARMERTIAEE 2 BB
B 938 1,386
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRAERI AR ZTIE
recognised & B (12,988) (6,303)
(Over)underprovision in respect of prior BAEFE 2 (BEREB)
years BETR (10,749) 82
Others H (580) (1,186)
Taxation for the year FEMIEA 803 29,293

The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is the
domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation
of the Group is substantially based. Taxation arising in

FIERm & ARG

other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in HERAMEGE

the relevant jurisdiction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

73 G B 5 2R B T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
11. DIVIDENDS 1. K8
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution during R AREE IR Z IS
the year:
2019 Final: Nil (2019: 2018 final dividend 20194 K 8 : 4=
HKO0.55 cent) per share (20194F : 20184 & Hf
1% B8 % 0.5578 Il - 37,287
2020 Interim: Nil (2019: interim dividend 2020F R HY - |
HKO0.35 cent) per share (20194 : R EARR B H M
0.3578 1ili) = 23,728
= 61,015
The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a B E2020F12A31HLEFE  EFg2
final dividend of HK0.15 cent per share (2019: Nil) in E;xi)f&ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁEiﬁ§0155%ﬂh(2019¢'
an aggregate amount of HK$10,169,000 (2019: Nil) for ) 4% % /510,169,0008 T (ZZE— A1
the year ended 31 December 2020 which is subject to F: ?ﬁi) fﬁ BEARNTIRENEERRE
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the BERG LI ERFTAEE -
forthcoming annual general meeting.
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC 12. B AR - HAR

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ARBBEEANRIEERERENTIRE
TABERE

EARNINGS Z R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit for the year attributable to owners of FETEEREAEF 2
the Company for the purpose of basic KRR EANEEEE
earnings per share i Al 33,993 90,031
NUMBER OF SHARES R & B
2020 2019

of basic earnings per share AR EE

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose &t .ﬂ‘ S BRERBR 2 E

6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129

No diluted earnings per share in both years was
presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HE2020F 12 A31B IEFE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W3 - e Rkl
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
building improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEL i HEWE BR %8B
k¥ REIR ES] "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
COSsT A
At 1 January 2019 20191418 1,800,000 338,459 107,498 1,338 2,247,295
Exchange realignment AT - (516) (611) (5) (1132)
Additions NE - 50,466 20,946 - 71,412
Disposals/write-off & - (17,330) (6,261) - (23,591)
At 31 December 2019 2019612 A31H 1,800,000 371,079 121,672 1,333 2,293,984
Exchange realignment EHAE - 1,854 1,102 13 2,969
Additions NE - 10,852 6,252 - 17,104
Disposals/write-off & - (52,739) (4,208) - (56,947)
At 31 December 2020 #R2020512A31H 1,800,000 331,046 124,718 1,346 2,257,110
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt ERHE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 H2019F1A1H 4,793 257,233 61,790 460 324,276
Exchange realignment EHAR - (345) (381) (5) (731)
Provided for the year FREE 92,081 30,364 14,001 233 136,679
Impairment loss recognised in profit KB EHERZHE
or loss B - 3,406 - - 3,406
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE - (15,390) (4,314) - (19,704)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 96,874 275,268 71,096 688 443,926
Exchange realignment I 530 B - 1,356 701 13 2,070
Provided for the year FREE 92,334 35,110 13,924 202 141,590
Impairment loss recognised in profit  RIERHER 2 E
or loss B - 6,990 - - 6,990
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /G 5 8 - (51,872) (3,490) - (65,362)
At 31 December 2020 MR2020%12 A31H 189,208 266,852 82,231 923 539,214
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A31H 1,610,792 64,194 42,487 423 1,717,896
At 31 December 2019 720196 12A31H 1,703,126 95,811 50,476 645 1,850,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The items of property, plant and equipment above, after
taking into account the residual value, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the lease
terms

16.7% — 33.3%
9% — 33.3%
18% — 20%

Leasehold land and building

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles
Leasehold land and building is located in Hong Kong.

Due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the number
of visitor arrivals dampened which led to certain shops
in Hong Kong and Macau not performing as expected,
the management of the Group concluded there was
an indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant shops.
The Group estimates the recoverable amount of these
shops, each represents an individual CGU, to which the
asset belongs when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, no impairment loss
was recognised on the shops which recoverable amount
is not less than the CGU’s carrying amount. Furthermore,
since the Group estimates certain shops with impairment
indicators would not generate a net cash inflow in
the future, an impairment loss of HK$6,990,000 and
HK$8,951,000 (2019: HK$3,406,000 and HK$16,804,000)
has been recognised against the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
respectively, in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2020, respectively. The remaining lease term
of these shops are to end around one year from the end
of the reporting period.

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 S $£ 2k 90 7 B4 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak o W 5 i PR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. fi FIRER &=
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$'000
FET
As at 31 December 2020 12020612 A31H
Carrying amount RmEE 365,022
As at 31 December 2019 ®20195F12A31H
Carrying amount REE 565,779
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E2020F12A31B L EE
Depreciation charge mEEHR 242,515
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) B MR 2 R B & 18 (M 5E13) 8,951
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31HILEE
Depreciation charge mEEHR 308,737
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) B R 2 M E BB (M FE13) 16,804

During the year ended 31 December 2019, other
leases with lease term end within 12 months of the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 amounted to
HK$46,413,000. Variable lease payments during the
year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$25,232,000
(2019: HK$28,330,000). In addition, rental expenses
for contracts reassessed not under the definition of
lease under HKFRS 16 was HK$48,395,000 (2019:
HK$22,798,000). Total cash outflow for leases during
the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$283,406,000 (2019: HK$381,957,000).

For both years, the Group leases retail shops and office
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 to 5 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

Addition to right-of-use assets resulting from new lease
entered or renewed amounted to HK$107,671,000 (2019:
HK$434,926,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 14. HHEEEE)
Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease TEEHMoHEEEEACTHENREE
payments or contain variable lease payment that are SRAEHENKEDEREHEE 2E
based on certain percentage sales and minimum annual TEAOLHEEREREFEREMNK) -
lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. The NFBERARAEEEFEEENTER
payment terms are common in retail shops in the PRC HRLE TR NERRAEEM
where the Group operates. The overall financial effect of BRERaHEHEELEZNHEEN
using variable payment terms is that higher rental costs PN

are incurred by shops with higher sales.

The Group has extension options for certain leases in REEREBBEHEEE THECERER
Hong Kong. These are used to maximise operational o ZEEEBEERARNREERAEEHLS
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the FTRACEEFERKLEBEEER A - R
Group’s operations. The extension options held are SEAITHFZERERE -

exercisable only by the Group.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date AEBERHERGBBRRFHELRENE
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension BRETHEERERERE - N20205F12H
options. As at 31 December 2020, the potential 3 AEEREEEBETELTERE
exposures to these future lease payments not included in EREJHEABRITRAMAZEZEARAKREE
lease liabilities for extension options in which the Group is 32 B R 7,506,000 7T (20194 -
not reasonably certain to exercise is HK$7,506,000 (2019: 15,786,000/ 7T) °

HK$15,786,000).

15. INVENTORIES 15. #&
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
F# T FH& T
Raw materials R MR 35,752 44,892
Goods held for resale FEE & m 2,994,197 3,103,458
3,029,949 3,148,350
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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H E2020F12 A31H L F[F
16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. MEWCHKIAE ~ % 4 K AT 30
PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables from contracts with RERFEHNZESEWR
customers FIA 63,830 50,716
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERG (1,223) (682)
62,607 50,034
Other receivables, deposits and HipEsHIE 2k
prepayments TE K IA 78,140 81,639
PRC Value-Added Tax (“VAT”) Fh i A] 4 E] A E A
recoverable (M E]) 8,181 12,394
148,928 144,067

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivable from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$65,855,000.

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit cards
with the settlement from the corresponding banks or other
financial institutions within seven days. The credit term
of receivables from retail sales in department stores are
normally ranged between 15 to 45 days.

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
as at 31 December 2020 were advance payments to
suppliers of HK$15,506,000 (2019: HK$19,208,000)
and rebate receivables of HK$30,624,000 (2019:
HK$33,654,000). The remaining items are individually
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. MEWCHKIH ~ ¥ & K AT K IEH ()
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables T RBERE S EWRIERE R KR
before impairment presented based on the invoice date REZFAM(EZARKAERAEMEN)
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated 22 BRE DN °

the respective revenue recognition dates.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Within 30 days 30H A 60,956 47165
31 — 60 days 31Z260H 409 828
61 — 90 days 61Z290H 48 313
Over 90 days H#®90H 2,417 2,410
63,830 50,716
Included in the trade receivables balance were BoRWFREBEBEHKRIBEEREAER
receivables from department stores with aggregate 1 301 OOO/%TE(2019$ 2,434,000/ Jt)
carrying amount of HK$1,301,000 (2019: HK$2,434,000) ZEWEERRINIE  RERBH - %%
which are past due at the reporting date for which the KIBEEE ﬁﬁ%ll?ﬁf’ﬁtﬂﬂﬁ &
Group has not provided for impairment loss. BESE -
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other B RHEMEWHIE ZREN G ZFIE
receivables are set out in note 28. YA M sE28 o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

17. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 17 SATH R R B &
As at 31 December 2020, bank balances carried interest PR2020F12 A31H @ BITEBIZFF0.01%
at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 3.15% per £3.15% (20194 : BF0.01%£1.65%) B
annum (2019: 0.01% to 1.65% per annum). BRI EETE o
Bank balances and cash that are not denominated in the WHNEEEERB ZNEEEINE R
functional currencies of the respective group entities are THEARRSWOT:
as follow:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
HK$ BT 234 1,379
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BRI (MR 53,272 23,359
United States dollars (“USD”) Ex([ZET)) 790 732
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18, ME A sk IE K HEHH 2
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Trade payables g5 RN HKIE 45,235 44 357
Other payables and accrued charges HtENRBERETER 75,484 72,631
Singapore Goods and Services Tax TN 7 on K AR 7S E A
payables 18 1,892 -
PRC VAT payables AR G A B 1,086 198
123,697 117186

Included in other payables and accrued charges
as at 31 December 2020 were accrued bonus and
incentive of HK$6,621,000 (2019: HK$4,894,000) and
accrued renovation costs of HK$12,005,000 (2019:
HK$13,369,000).

The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period are

BRI A H A FE 3R & FE AT B AR 20204F
12 A31A BB L4 K #846,621,00078 7T
(20194 : 4,894,000/8 JT) M JE 51 & & X
712,005,000/ 7T (20194F : 13,369,000/%
JL) °

JEH RIERIERPAREZBEEAREY 2
BREC AT T ¢

as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FETT
Within 30 days 30BN 39,964 37,339
31 — 60 days 31260H 2,131 4,429
61 — 90 days 61%£90H 866 326
Over 90 days @90 H 2,274 2,263
45,235 44,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B R M RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. MEAT s IEH K HEFHE I (8)
(Continued)
The Group normally receives credit terms granted by AEB-—REBRARTZEERAI0
creditors of 30 to 60 days. £60H -
Trade payables that are not denominated in the functional WINEEEER  NEEBAECE
currencies of the respective group entities are as follows: 5 e 3K IE ZZD—I—
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FAT
MOP RPITT 6,263 4,804
UsSbD ETT 1,821 39
19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. &AM
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE:
Within one year —F K 227,155 286,327
Within a period of more than one year — — @ LA H{ET B B /@ F
but not more than two years 131,447 192,382
Within a period of more than two years M FIA F{EREBBEAF
but not more than five years 62,244 140,588
420,846 619,297
Less: Amount due for settlement with B IAREBBEIL AR
12 months shown under current 12REARNEEEE
liabilities ol (227,155) (286,327)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FIAJEMEB BEI AR
months shown under non-current 12EAEREEEE 2
liabilities okl 193,691 332,970

) @ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 i &% 2k 20 A F 4 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Ak o W 5 i PR R

20. AHIARE

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 3 FTERT FAT
Advances from customers E P # (a) 6,777 7,157
Customer loyalty B R R T & (b)
programmes 3,100 4,800
9,877 11,957
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the AEHBEERHERASEE —REEHEEBA
Group’s normal operating cycle and classified as current BERDBERRBAE -

liabilities.

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$10,293,000.

Notes:

(a) Advances from customers of HK$6,777,000 (2019:
HK$7,157,000) were received for the sales of watches and
jewellery.

(b)  Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers,
under the Group’s customer loyalty programmes, are
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions.
The fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the goods supplied and the award credits
granted. The consideration allocated to the award credits is
measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. As at 31 December 2020,
the consideration of HK$3,100,000 (2019: HK$4,800,000) was
allocated to the award credits.

The customer loyalty points granted during the year will
expire at the end of June in the following year.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5t S8k BR T A PR A ] ™
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R2019F181H » A4 &1E /510,293,000
BT e

3

(a)

(b)

BHEEERRKREMBUR TR BN R
JE /%6,777,0003% 7T (20194 : 7,157,000/
JT)°

BEMETFPREASEEREHE
EEHE EREENAERAZ TEER
ARS  EFERZERREZAAER
R EmREMG TREZHETS
fid - PEEHEZREDHLREZZANTR
M BEZ AREMEEE - R2020F12A8
318 HELEEE 2R {EA3,100,000% 7T
(20194F : 4,800,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
21. RIGHT TO RETURNED GOODS ASSET AND 21. BEREEMKEXAME
REFUND LIABILITIES
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Right to returned goods asset BREREEE 794 3,167
Refund liabilities arising from right of REEMELEZERFERE
return 1,035 4,219
The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return HEBEREPRE %ﬁﬁa BA%’E% :
products. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a right Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂqLi@Z%uu BREFEBER
to returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustments fé%ﬁ?t%&ﬁﬂﬁ”&ﬁ?&&ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ% °
to revenue and cost of sales are recognised for those AEEZEABEHREEEIEARFELL
products expected to be returned. The Group uses its TR E#HA -
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of returns using the expected value method.
22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED 22, FEW () BA 2 A R k0H

COMPANIES

The amounts due from related companies mainly
represent prepayment of operating expenses.

The amounts due to related companies mainly represent
the service charge payable to related companies. These
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The related companies represent companies controlled
by a director or private trusts of which another director is
one of the eligible beneficiaries.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3k 5 85 &k Bk 27 A it 4 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the deferred tax assets (liabilities)

recognised by the Group and the movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

23. EIEBLIH

AEBERZEEHRAEE(RE) A
REAFENBEFEZ2ESHNAT :

Accelerated tax Tax
Leases depreciation losses Total
HE MEHBHTE BEEBE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET TET
(Note)
(BF3E)
At 1 January 2019 201915418 - 4,054 - 4,054
Exchange realignment PE A 3 & - (6) - (6)
Credit (charge) to profit ~ RFRBEFEAGIR)
or loss for the year 7,592 (1,823) - 5,769
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 7,592 2,225 - 9,817
Exchange realignment [ 35 % - (14) - (14)
(Charge) credit to profit ~ RERIEZ () FTA
or loss for the year (Bt 3E)
(Note) (7,592) (1,109) 6,435 (2,266)
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 A31H - 1,102 6,435 7,537
Note: At 31 December 2020, no temporary difference arise in MiE: M2020F12A31H ARAEE B RE

leases because the Group was entitled to claim all related
expenses as clarified by the tax authority.

BB HERAMEEBER  EutH
ETEELEREZRE -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose:

REINGEMBMRABRBRME - & T
EREREEENMBBEETEE - AR
IR = R IRE R IBG R DA

2020 2019

HK$°’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 10,896 13,086
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAG (3,359) (3,269)
7,537 9,817

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 2 S8k 3R #{ 1 R A+ o X
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

23.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$102,608,000
(2019: HK$137,025,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$39,000,000 (2019: Nil) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of remaining tax losses of HK$63,608,000
(2019: HK$137,025,000) due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses incurred by subsidiaries in other jurisdictions of
HK$63,564,000 (2019: HK$136,861,000) that will expire
in the coming years (please see the table below). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. Tax losses of
HK$1,902,000 (2019: HK$15,314,000) have been expired
during the year.

The unused tax losses available for offset against future
profits are analysed as follows:

23.

A% S B IH (48)

RIESRHAMEEH - NEEES A K 8
RHH A 2 AR B A IE B 18 49102,608,000
7 7 (20194F : 137,025,000 7T) ° #Li% 5
Fﬁ Té #739,000,0007% JT (20194 : &) ##
RIEE T IE o BB R 2R A 2R R B LA
TE *Jr R Bt %4 T8 & $863,608,000/% 7T

(20194F : 137,025,000 JT.) HE 32 I &
HEE REMA ZEREEZHBA

AFEEHAERTEBERREHR K
R EF JE m 263,564,000 7T (20194F ¢
136,861,000 7T) 2 E1E (R T &R) - EAth
EEAERBLEE - FAEER2HIEE
18 21,902,000/ 7T (20194F : 15,314,000
BIT) °

AAEREARK ZRN 2 REARIBEIE
DT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Will expire on: 1P %I B B fE O

31 December 2020 202012 A31H - 42,998
31 December 2021 202112 H31H 10,709 48,208
31 December 2022 2022F12 H31H 14,031 13,294
31 December 2023 2023%12H31H 20,391 19,215
31 December 2024 2024F12 A31H 2,629 3,027
31 December 2025 2025912 H31H 8,310 4,748
31 December 2026 202612 A31H 5,371 5,371
31 December 2027 2027F 12 A31H 2,123 -
63,564 136,861

Unrecognised tax loses that may be AR HA AR 2 M R TR
carried forward indefinitely HIEE B 44 164
63,608 137,025

) @ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 i &% 2k 20 A F 4 7
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

24. BANK BORROWINGS 24, RITMHEE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
The carrying amounts of bank loans EEREREERBRIRZ
that contain a repayment on demand RITERREEAE
clause (shown under current liabilities (7A2020F12 A31H &
as at 31 December 2020) but REBEETIR)
repayable: BEARNATHMEER:
Within one year —F R 45,630 172,900
Within a period of more than one year  — @ LA BB BMF
but not exceeding two years 45,630 42,396
Within a period of more than two years R FIA F{ETEBBEAF
but not exceeding five years 430,179 438,088
Within a period of more than five years  HF M E 117,254 137,550
638,693 790,934
Less: Amounts due within one year WA RBBEL AR
shown under current liabilities —FARNEEZERE (638,693) (172,900)
Amounts shown under non-current FIANERBBEZ 2
liabilities - 618,034

The bank borrowings carry floating interest rate ranged
from 1.10% to 1.14% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) (2019: 1.11% to 1.14%) and 1.2% over
Singapore Interbank Offered Rate (“SIBOR”) (2019: 1.2%)
per annum.

The Group had pledged a property with carrying amount
of HK$1,610,792,000 (2019: HK$1,703,126,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. In addition,
corporate guarantee was also issued in favour of the
banks by the Company and its subsidiary to secure
banking facilities granted to Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has obtained
the comfort letters from the bank indicating that bank
borrowing would not be called within the next twelve
months and therefore the bank borrowing due after twelve
months would not be classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements.

RITEEREBRTAXEFRE(ESER
TRERE D IMN110%E1.14% 2 F B F 7
KB (20194F : 1.11% 2£1.14%) K& 3% 57 hn
WIRITRERE ([FIMNFRITRERE ]
h01.2% (20195 : 1.2%) 5t 8. »

AEBECDE M —IERME610,792,000%
76 (20194F : 1,703,126,000/8 70) Z ¥ 2 -
WIEABASEBEERRITHE ZEKBER -
o RRRIREMB AR TR AEER
ERBITHEMMBITIREDEER -

MR2019F 12 A31H  AEBEBIRTTER
ERE RERRRTZBAARNRITE
ETewEs BAW T @ A% 5 5
RITEEBTENGREUBREAR S
BEARBARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
Number of ordinary shares Share capital
EERYA [
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTAET
Issued and fully paid BETRER
At beginning of year R E K&
and at end of year FR 6,779,458,129  6,779,458,129 3,484,152 3,484,152
26. RESERVES 26. fii ffd

(a) Merger reserve arose from the group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) undertaken
by the Company to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange in 2008.

(b)  Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of:

(i)  the difference between the nominal value of
share capital and the amount due to Emperor
W&J Holdings capitalised for issue of 344
ordinary shares of US$1 each in a subsidiary
of HK$343,997,000 prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

(i) the capital contribution of HK$6,000 by
Emperor W&J Holdings in Emperor Watch
and Jewellery Company Limited (subsequently
renamed as Prime Sharp Limited, a then fellow
subsidiary of the Company) (“EWJCL”") prior to
the Group Reorganisation;

(i) promissory notes in aggregate of
HK$373,006,000 issued in exchange for
shares in the subsidiaries as a part of Group
Reorganisation;

(iv) the excess of the consideration paid for
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
from a non-controlling shareholder over the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest
of HK$927,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010;

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 S $£ 2k 90 7 B4 5
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(iv)

REBEAA - RAEEEE
NEEERKRBIEBFAER
b (B£17 3441 /B A R & B mE
BT 2 EBBAND) 2 EH
7 #8343,997,000/8 T :

REERAKEEREEE
EHANHEEERKERR
A |l (E 12 #8 & Prime  Sharp
Limited - ERAARF 2R
ZHBATNIEWICL) 2 HE
6,000/ 7T :

EREEESHEZHY BBk
o 8 2 m) 2 B T B AT 2 A L
R ¥ & 373,006,000/ 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

26.

27.

RESERVES (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)
(v) the shortfall of the consideration paid
for acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary from a non-controlling interest of
HK$4,063,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010;

(vi) the reversal of reserve of HK$295,000 arising
from the deregistration of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary during the year ended 31
December 2011; and

(vii) the reversal of HK$28,000 and HK$5,000

arising from the deregistration of a wholly

owned subsidiary during the year ended 31

December 2015 and 31 December 2014,

respectively.

(c) Capital reserve represented the excess of the value
of net assets acquired over purchase consideration
paid to EWJCL by Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK)
Company Limited in 1987.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents, debt comprising bank borrowings, lease
liabilities and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of
capital and risks associated with the capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new
bank borrowings.

26.

27.

Ak o W 5 i PR R

il 45 (48)

by (#&)
(v) REZE2010F128318ILFE
[m) — 44 FF 122 AR 2 W B — AT B
BREfEIIMERE ZENRET
2% 584,063,000 7T ;

(vi) EHZE2011F12A31BILFE -
SR AM—FEEZEH B AR
ifi # 1B 2 f# 295,000 T
58

HZE2015F12 A31H K 20144
12A318 EFE I EMM—
M2 EHBRAMmD R #D
28,0008 7t &5,000/% T °

(vii)

(c) BAREBELAESEEU®KEEFES A
RARIR1987F W EBEWICLZ B E
FHBABEREZLY °

A Ja e 4 B

AEBEREANUABREEANSERDY
ARERLE  RFEBELERKRRA
RHRBRRRARZAEME - NEFHZE
BREEBEFEMEL T BN E -

AEBZEAERBREREIREEE
Yo AmRITEEEANZER HEAR
ARARRBEEARIEED (BRE#ET
B AN R et 8

EEEMRTEARER Rk A%
BMEEEAKAREARBBEER I
BRBITHR  EBEEROERBRERTE
EVEHERENER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. 4k T H
A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A. RTEEH
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#& T
Financial assets TEEE
At amortised cost R IH R 594,002 444,242
Financial liabilities THEE
At amortised cost 28 8H R 697,981 851,622
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B MBEARBEEESEREE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits,
amounts due from related companies, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in their respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (including foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities are exposed primarily to
the financial risks of changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates (see below).

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 & % 2k 9 47 FiL A 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk

The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating-rate bank balances
(see note 17 for details) and floating-rate
bank borrowings (see note 24 for details) and
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate lease liabilities (see
note 19 for details). The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances,
HIBOR and SIBOR arising from the floating-
rate bank borrowings. The Group aims at
keeping bank borrowings at floating rates. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any
interest rate movements based on interest rate
level and outlook. The management will review
the proportion of bank borrowings in fixed
and floating rates and ensure they are within
reasonable range.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis point (2019: 100
basis point) increase or a 10 basis point
(2019: 100 basis point) decrease in floating-
rate bank borrowings are used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis as the Directors
consider that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating-rate bank
balances is insignificant.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2019: 100 basis points) higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would decrease by HK$6,387,000 (2019:
HK$7,909,000). If interest rates had been 10
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 would increase by
HK$639,000 (2019: HK$7,909,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its floating-rate bank
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain sales and purchases
transactions and bank balances denominated
in MOP, USD, Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore
Dollars (“SGD”) and Malaysian Ringgit
("MYR”) which are the currencies other than
the functional currencies of respective group
entities. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the
movements of the foreign currency rates. The
Directors conduct periodical review of foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should
the need arise.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

E E2020F12A318 L F &
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. &mh T H(#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXEBREEEEREE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued) i 5 Jal i (72)
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) ME @B (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary RERAR  NEBEBE
assets and liabilities, including inter-group EERBNEEE I TS
balances at the end of the reporting period BENEBEERAEEBES

that are denominated in currencies other than FAEER)BREEN T
the functional currency of the relevant entities
are as follow:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT F#ETT
Assets iE
Third parties E=7
HK$ v 233 1,379
MOP JBFIT 55,716 25,335
USD ET 790 732
RMB AR 236 18
MYR BRADTSTH 479 30
Inter-group balances FEEE B
SGD 03 7T 48 1,111
MYR BREESH 5,520 10,541
Liabilities &8E
Third parties E=r
MOP P 6,269 5,305
UsD ETT 1,821 39
Inter-group balances FEEE B
HK$ B 7T 858,395 858,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

B E2020F 12 A31A L F E
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. &R TH(#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. MEEBEEAERRX(A)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued) 7 5 i B (42)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SPEEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis WK B 2T
The sensitivity analysis below details the TR SRR E D AT AN R B
Group’s sensitivity to a 6% (2019: 6%) increase EEEBEEE 2 WEEEBRS
in the functional currencies of the relevant B Z 5N F6% (20194F : 6%)
group entities, relative to respective foreign ZHRERE c REBZHRE S
currencies. The sensitivity analysis of the T IR B4 & [ R 45 B4 BT AR B
Group also includes foreign currency exposure Z N B o 8RR L E6%
on inter-group balances. 6% (2019: 6%) is (20194 : 6%) JHEE E R INE
the sensitivity rate used in the management’s ERARe S IR IR 2 #EATIE
assessment of the reasonably possible change M2 & - MREDTERRE
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity ANt E 2 BEIEE - W
analysis includes only foreign currencies P ¥ HA R $26% (20194 : 6%)
denominated monetary items and adjusts their HNEETE R F B FEIRE - WE
translation at the end of the reporting period EEEEERE 2 EBHE
for a 6% (2019: 6%) change in the foreign BZONETHE B2 (E6%

currency rates. If the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities strengthen/weaken
6% against respective foreign currencies:

Translation reserve would have increased/ HREERGEHR(ASE
decreased by HK$51,170,000 (2019: RBARIKEEFEFZE
HK$50,805,000) as a result of change in 4 & 20 o) 2 Jh B (' X
foreign currency rates of inter-group balances, 28 EXGEESEN
as the inter-group balances form part of the 851,170,000/ 7T (20194 :
Group’s net investments in subsidiaries. 50,805,000/ 7T) °

Pre-tax profit for the year would have HRE=ZFATZEEREBE
decreased/increased by HK$2,981,000 INBIERED)  NFEE 2R
(2019: Pre-tax profit for the year would have Al A 4R 2, 1 52,981,000
decreased/increased by HK$1,283,000) as a 75 70 (20194F « 3% F [E Br # Al
result of change in foreign currency rates of i A i R 418 501,283,000
third parties’ assets and liabilities. ABIT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily
attributable to trade receivables, other receivables,
rental deposits, amounts due from related
companies and bank balances. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about
the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as
below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed annually. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC and
Hong Kong, which accounted for 90% (2019: 80%)
and 6% (2019: 14%) of the total trade receivables
as at 31 December 2020, respectively. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances.
Except for items that are subject to individual
evaluation, the remaining trade receivables are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to the external credit ratings for
industry/Group’s internal credit ratings/past-due
amounts/repayment frequency after due dates.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

Other receivables, rental deposits and amounts
due from related companies

The directors of the Company have taken into
account internal credit rating based on the historical
default experience and credit quality and various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information, as appropriate, in estimating the
probability of default of each of the other financial
assets occurring within their respective loss
assessment time horizon. They are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference
to the external credit ratings for industry/Group’s
internal credit ratings/past-due amounts/repayment
frequency after due dates. For the purpose of
impairment assessment, the ECL of these financial
assets is measured under 12-month ECL. No ECL
allowance has been recognised as the amount is
not considered to be material.

Bank balances

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

n'/T

28. &M LH(#)

B. MEBRERE

o 0 25 i 2% W Rk

BEEERBE(E)

e FE il B % i A 7 A (42)

AEBAEEERRFRHTINER

Bl 4B X

Internal Other financial
credit rating Description Trade receivables assets
REEEFR B8R B S5 EWRRIE HheMEE
Low risk The counterparty is reputable Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
1K & 2 and has a low risk of credit-impaired 128 ATE I EE 18
default and does not have % EifEHi{ZEE18 -
any past-due amounts mEERE
EBEBNRGHFHZEN
B\ B K - B I AT ]
ﬂﬂ?ﬁ%%ﬂlﬁ
Watch list Debtor is reputable but with  Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL

EREE

Doubtful
17 &t

Loss

& 18

Write-off

past-due amounts and
frequently repays after due
dates
EREBARENIBRERE
EBBEBHNEBA

There have been significant
increases in credit risk
since initial recognition
through information
developed internally or
external resources

RIBAE K 2 & FH kI

AR R ERR S AH#
S iJD

There is evidence indicating
the asset is credit-
impaired

EREBRBREELREER
(=]

There is evidence indicating
that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
BRETEBSADYERE
MBRA#BENRANEETEE
PR U |7 2

credit-impaired
HEHEEEE -
EmEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
/\Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘”ﬂéﬂ% -
EEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
>HIFEMEEEE -

EfEERE

Amount is written off

SR

12B AEHEEEE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
THEHEEBE -
wmZERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

THEBREEEBE -
EfEERE

Amount is written off

IR o 35
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. &t TH(#&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXEREEEEREE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT 17 £ I B 2% v e AT A (42)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures TEFRAEEemEE(RETT
of the Group’s financial assets which are subject to BHEEEBRTM MG ZEER
ECL assessment: & B
External Internal 12-month or Gross
credit rating  credit rating lifetime ECL carrying amount
o A 12BA8R
EEIAR EEIR 2HBEHGEEER REAE
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3E TER FET
Financial assets at amortised cost
BREBHBRAIRZEMEE
Trade receivables 16 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 62,607 50,034
BHRWRFIE TER (&) (not credit-impaired)
CHENEEER
(BEEERE)
Credit-impaired 1,223 682
EEERE
Other receivables 16 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 31,813 33,654
Hith FE YRR TER (F3E2) REABHEEERE
Rental deposits - N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 93,910 116,721
i TER (FE2) REABHEEESE
Amounts due from 22 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 561 3,924
related companies ik (F3E2) REREHEESE
JE Y Bl i A R 5B
Bank balances 17 A or above (Note 3) 12-month ECL 398,439 232,948
RITHEH AR £ GEX) REABHEEEE
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H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. ST H (&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. UXEBREEEEREE(E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT 15 Bl B & ik 1 7F 1 (&)

(Continued)

Notes:

3 :

Trade receivables primarily consist of credit card
sales, e-payment sales platforms such as Alipay or
WeChat Pay and department store sales. The Directors
monitor their balances on an ongoing basis. Trade
receivables in connection with invoices settled through
credit card of HK$5,884,000 or e-payment platforms
of HK$1,966,000 are assessed individually and with
high credit rating and no past due history. Trade
receivables with significant balances in connection with
department stores are assessed individually. Other
trade receivables in connection with department stores
are considered on a collective basis. In determining
the ECL for certain trade receivables in connection
with department stores, the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default experience
and forward-looking information, such as GDP. The
management of the Group considers some of these
assets are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of reputable
department stores. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

ESEBRBFEREEAREE -
MY HERMEINTSTETFINTFE
ARAEARIHEE ERFHEER
H &8 - B35 38 {5 A 5,884,000
IR ET T F 41,966,000 7T
HERZHEBEHERKIEY
CHTEBIFTEEREETR
RIEaifies: -SHEERRAH
CHEREGESEWRGBEET
BEIE BEEAREMHZH A
BORNFBINIREBEETIUE
BeoREBTEAEAGEHENET
EHEWFIEMEREEBIER -
REEEIRELEERAE KA
MINGDPERTEME R - REBE
BERAZEEEBEHEE I
EREAABENHENR B
RZATBE T E B o L
EERAAEEZEERARECEE
W o

In determining the ECL for other receivables, rental 2. RETHMEWZRE HeRE X
deposits and amounts due from related companies, EWEEARREZEBEEREE
the management of the Group has taken into account FH AEEEEEEHREBEAEE
the historical default experience and forward-looking ERBEAR L8 K ANGDP &R #E
information, such as GDP, as appropriate, and MER WRAEEERBRBE VR E
concluded that no significant increase in credit risk REABEENRLEBEEEM - B
since initial recognition is noted and risk of default is BREBESEN Bt WES
insignificant, and therefore, no impairment has been UL e R R (E o

recognised.

The Group measures the loss allowance on liquid funds 3. AEEMERDESCIBERER

equal to 12-month ECL. The credit risk on liquid funds
is limited because cash are placed with reputable
banks with external credit rating of at least “A” assigned
by an international credit-rating agency or state owned.

in the estimation

HERMEAEHEERE - R
B EERARER  RARRE
DiERRAERANIBEETRE
PEIALI(HBEREEFRERE
BF)2RITHBERIRITA -

RAFEY BREEFRIOAER

There has been no change
techniques or significant assumptions made
throughout the year.

Bk -

MRS BLE R ETTIRE R AR
BHRKFAERNEHBEHREER

A%

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
which are assessed for impairment individually:

EMWMRWWWH&EW&EM%NHH)%%ﬁﬁ%gﬁmﬁﬁ:””ﬁ
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

Movement in the allowance for credit losses:

28. &R T H(#Z)
B. UXEBREEEEREE(E)

e FE il B % i A 7 A (42)

EEBEBRENEHBN:

Lifetime

ECL (credit-

impaired)

ZHEH

FEEBR

(BEERE)

HK$'000

FAT

As at 1 January 2019 72019491 A1H 4 519

Impairment losses recognised B MR E & B 682

Impairment losses reversed VERIEN SRR (4,519)

As at 31 December 2019 2019512 A31H 682

Impairment losses recognised EERREEE 536

Exchange realignment bE H, 38 & 5

As at 31 December 2020 12020512 A31H 1,223
LIQUIDITY RISK i B & & M b

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely
by the management of the Company. In the
management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
adequate to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
lease liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest cash flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 & % 2k 9 47 FiL A 7]
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H E2020F 12 AR ILF E
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. &Rt THE)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. XEAMREEEEREEK(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) Ui B & I B (FE)
Carrying
Weighted Repayable More than More than amount at
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total the end of
effective or within  less than less than Over undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows period
mEFY HERER 1FULEE 28K LA RUBREE RERHRZ
BEANE HESEFER DR25F DREFE HEB5F REAHE iR H &
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER FTERT FTERT TRz
At 31 December #2020%12A31AR
2020
Trade and other B REM
payables e R IE = 54,666 = = = 54,666 54,666
Amounts due to related & B 3&E A B FIA
companies = 4,622 = = = 4,622 4,622
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.22 638,693 = = = 638,693 638,693
Lease liabilities HEAE 2.66 236,893 135,366 63,823 = 436,082 420,846
934,874 135,366 63,823 = 1,134,063 1,118,827
Carrying
Weighted  Repayable ~ More than ~ More than amount at
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total the end of
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows period
mETY  BEEER 1FNREE 2FNUEE AURBAE RERBAZ
ERME BEIIFN VRS PREFE BBSF mEERE RHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2019 12019512 H31H
Trade and other BHREM
payables e R IE - 59,660 - - - 59,660 59,660
Amounts due to related  FE{ B E R A 58
companies - 1,030 - - - 1,030 1,030
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.36 199,467 65,261 490,972 151,659 907,359 790,934
Lease liabilities HEAE 3.36 304,760 197,553 143,947 - 646,260 619,297
564,917 262,814 634,919 151,659 1,614,309 1,470,921
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EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. &t TH(#&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXRBREEEEREE(Z)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) i B & I B (4E)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank R2020F12A31H " AEB &A%
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is BREERANBRITEEREBH
classified under “Repayable on demand or within 1 SRS ERIMER ZRKEEH1F
year” time band in the maturity analysis. Taking into NIMRHEE - KERAEENYT
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors Mo EERBRITALTIEITE
believe that is it probable that the bank will not HEREEERTBEE Mm% E 8
exercise its discretionary right to demand immediate EFRRBBREBEERBERMEANRE
repayment and such term loan will be repaid in EEBHER - RULER £ RK1T
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set EXNFERACRERENT
out in the loan agreement. On this basis, the interest
and principal cash flows for the bank loan would be
as follows:
Carrying
Weighted Repayable More than More than amount at
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total the end of
effective or within  less than less than Over undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows period
hn#E F 15 BEREXR 1FU0EE 250 LEE KEREE RERHRZ
BERFE HEIFR DR2F DR5E BB5SF REAHE REE
%  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FTET FTET TR
At 31 December 2020  A2020F12A31H
Bank borrowings BIEE 2.22 53,901 53,245 443,223 120,613 670,982 638,693
C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL C. ZRMEEREBGBZAAEBERE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts EERR REBHEHANEAREGEEUE
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded WEFEBceREEREMBE
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial JEEEREAFESE 2 ANEBEMESE °
statements approximate to their fair values.
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 29. BEARKYE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of EABECITNERR
acquisition of property, plant and HEMBREBEEBEZ
equipment contracted for but not ME - HERREZ
provided in the consolidated financial BEARRE
statements 247 1,419
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 May 2018 to approve the adoption of a share
option scheme of the Company (“2018 Share Option
Scheme”).

A summary of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is set out
as follows:

1. PURPOSE

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group.

2. ELIGIBILITY

Eligible participants include employees (whether
full-time or part time, including any Executive
Director, Non-executive Director or Independent
Non-executive Director) and such other eligible
participants.

3. TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE

i. No. of Shares: 687,308,812 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of issued
shares as at 23 May 2018, the date of passing
the resolution for adoption of the 2018 Share
Option Scheme.

ii. Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at 24 March 2021 (the date of
this annual report): 10.14%.

4. MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANT

i. in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved
by the Shareholders; and

ii. options granted to eligible participant in excess
of the 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31B L FE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

5. PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES MUST BE
TAKEN UP UNDER AN OPTION

At any time from the date of grant of the option to
such a date determined by the Board of Directors
but in any event no exceeding 10 years from the
date of grant.

6. MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION MUST
BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by
the Board of Directors.

7. (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date
of grant; and

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

8. BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE EXERCISE
PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board of
Directors (subject to adjustment) and will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Share as stated in daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date; and (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date.

9. REMAINING LIFE

Approximately 7 years (expiring on 22 May 2028).
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2020, no option was granted, exercised,

cancelled or remained outstanding under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme.

~ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 & % 2k 9 47 FiL A 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
H ZE2020F 12 A31H L FE

31

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO”
Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all
new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee. The maximum
amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per each
employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee’s basic salary.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, Macau, Singapore are members of pension
schemes operated respective local governments. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage ranging from 38% to 44% of the
relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to the
pension schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary
in Macau is required to contribute MOP60 for every
employee per month while the subsidiary in Singapore
is required to contribute 16% of the employee’s monthly
gross salary. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T

EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)  31. Bk Kl 5 #) (&)
The total expense recognised in profit or loss of 18 % W R 4 R 14,534,000 T
HK$14,534,000 (2019: HK$24,419,000) represents (20194 : 24,419,000;‘%%)2%$%¢E§Z
contributions, payable to those plans by the Group at the ZirERATRENEBERERZSE
rate specified in the rules of the plans. fER LK -
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. MEHTRS
The terms and balances with related companies at the EA[#& HRzBER rEERE A
end of the reporting periods are set out in consolidated R & B 75 R /R#lﬁi%&ﬁﬁ .&22 °
statements of financial position and note 22.
During the year, the Group had the following transactions RERN  REEEBESZXH0T:
with related parties:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(1)  Sales of goods to Directors, HEBMMTESE FEZILHR
their close family members KB &E AR (K itakb)
and related companies
(notes a and b) 3,745 5,013
(2)  Electricity and air- EXNEENTHAEQRZ
conditioning expenses paid BTENZEHBLH
and payable to related (M sFaXkb)
companies (notes a and b) 258 349
(3)  Service charge in respect EXNREMNTHEQFREH
of information system and B EHRLITHRIEZRBE
administrative work paid and  (Fff 5£a Kk b)
payable to related companies
(notes a and b) 607 14,800
(4)  Advertising expenses paid EXNRENTHEEARZ
and payable to related B &R (MsEakb)
companies (notes a and b) 428 527
(5)  Financial advisory fee paid B X kEMNFT—HEBEQR
and payable to a related Z R E R (M iakb)
company (notes a and b) 285 420
(6) Interest expenses on mMEEARIEHCHERR
lease liabilities to related B (K sEa)
companies (note a) 2,455 5,606
(7)  Expenses relating to other HEMHAPEEREREE
leases with lease terms M mEERFE165% 2 ARG
and within 12 months of the 12 AL RZHEEB 2
date of initial application of  F 3% (fft #£ac)
HKFRS 16 (notes a and c) = 1,958
(8)  Variable lease payments to  [AEEAREHN I EHER
related companies (notes a 18 (M} 7Fafc)
and c) 1,443 -

T 0 5 i 3% B Bk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

H E2020F 12 AR ILF E

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32. BR#EJ5 3 5 (4%&)
As at 31 December 2020, deposits paid to related 2020 12H31H - EXfI THAERA 2
companies amounting to HK$25,661,000 (2019: 124 25,661,000/ JT (20194 : 45,768,000
HK$45,768,000) was included in rental deposits under BITIBIIAERBEE L HEES -

non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had recognised 2020512 A31H » AEBEEHEBEER
lease liabilities of approximately HK$40,653,000 (2019: AIH M & #E R E & E4 /40,653,000
HK$117,118,000) for the leases with related companies. 78 7T (20194F : 117,118,000/ JT.) °

Notes: B 3

(@) The related companies are controlled by a Director or () BAEAFTHR—EBEFIMAGTE(Z—%
private trusts of which another Director is one of the eligible ERELHEP—REERZHAN)ES -
beneficiaries.

(b)  These transactions are connected transactions exempt from (b) FZEXRZABELTHRAIE14A 3315 3
announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’ RBTRAE EREBBRELEZR
requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. EHHRERS

(c)  The expenses paid are in relation to the tenancy agreements () BENXETNBERERRARBEARGLLZ
entered into with the related companies of the Company. HEWE EPRUERGDARGZET
Some of these transactions are disclosed continuing WREHERERS (ER R LTHRAIZE14A
connected transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A ) EFBERESFS iﬁ:’:fé%fié‘iﬁﬁé
of the Listing Rules) of the Company which details are Z - QTJF_JZ/\%’JZ% S RAERSIET
disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected (HEEERS | —EHE -

Transactions” under “Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

The compensation to the Directors and key management AEBESELFIEETRBABZHME
personnel of the Group are disclosed in note 9. B sEO#E &

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5t S8k BR T A PR A ] ™
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING  33.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRENAEEREEZHMEENAE
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from PE}HFBE MEETHFEANBEAS
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, RAEEFZERERNEXPIBEARE
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EEGEHReRENRENE N ARKR

A g A 2 R BR

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EmME e
financing activities.
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable Total
HEEE RITHEE PR 2 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
As at 1 January 2019 201961 /1H 480,281 1,156,495 - 1,636,776
Financing cash flows: MERERE:
- Bank borrowings raised -EEBIRITEE - 1,079,071 - 1,079,071
- Repayments of bank borrowings -EBERTES - (1,444,632) - (1,444,632)
- Repayments of lease liabilities -EHEHESRE (286,531) - - (286,531)
- Interest paid -BHEFE (20,683) (36,253) - (56,936)
- Dividend paid - ENEE - - (61,015) (61,015)
Net cash used in financing cash flows MEREREMAZELFE (307,214) (401,814) (61,015) (770,043)
New leases entered or modified AR ERZHEE 429,964 - - 429,964
Termination of leases HE®IE (4,417) - - (4,417)
Interest expenses MEFZ 20,683 36,253 - 56,936
Dividends recognised BRRR S - - 61,015 61,015
As at 31 December 2019 20196124318 619,297 790,934 = 1,410,231
Financing cash flows: MEREME
- Bank borrowings raised -BEBZBEIEE = 129,515 = 129,515
- Repayments of bank borrowings -EERTES - (281,949) - (281,949)
- Repayments of lease liabilities -HEHEER (241,687) - - (241,687)
- Interest paid -BERAA (16,487) (16,652) - (33,139)
Net cash used in financing cash flows BERSREMAZRSTE (258,174) (169,086) - (427,260)
New leases entered or renewed AR EE HHAE 98,619 = = 98,619
Lease modified HEEBN (58,736) - - (58,736)
Interest expenses N 16,487 16,652 - 33,139
Exchange realignment [ERzCE 3,353 193 - 3,546
As at 31 December 2020 120205128310 420,846 638,693 - 1,059,539

” EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 & &% BR 7 A7 Fi 24 w]
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  34. ZA w2 B % ik Ol 3 & 5% 6 5
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z®RE 2,295,216 2,060,305
Amount due from a subsidiary Bl — KB QR RIEA 2,335,330 2,447,567
4,630,546 4,507,872
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments & RTENKIEA 541 541
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LR 1,021 1,063
1,562 1,604
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued HENRBERETER
charges 353 353
Amount due to a subsidiary B — R B AR RIE 88,537 88,822
Amount due to a related company  JEfT— B E QB FRIA = 35
88,890 89,210
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (87,328) (87,6086)
Net assets BERE 4,543,218 4,420,266
Capital and reserve ERXK#E
Share capital A% A 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserve & 1,059,066 936,114
Total equity MR 4,543,218 4,420,266
The Company’s statement of financial position was RRAT 2 AR R &k R20215F3 24 R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of KEFGHERKENE WHTIE
Directors on 24 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf ERREE:
by:
CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE BEF

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3% 5t S8k BR T A PR A ] @
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  34. AR w]Z %k Ol ik & X (&)
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVE KRB 2HEEE

Retained

profits

& 88 3% R

HK$'000

FAET

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 856,999
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 R F| & 2 U A 4 %8 140,130
Final dividend paid for 2018 2018F R HEA IR & (37,287)
Interim dividend paid for 2019 20194 R Hi fix B (23,728)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 936,114
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year W& Fll & & E U A & %8 122,952
At 31 December 2020 7A2020512A831H 1,059,066

) @ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 i &% 2k 20 A F 4 7
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  35.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

B2E J i) P
720206 K 20195 12A31H » A A A £
BHBARZHENT

Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
BR{T
R/ R/ EERRE/ rRERR
WEAREE BEME dfMEE BRTRAZILA TEXRK
2020 2019
Direct subsidiaries
EENELAT
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited (*HK") 1B RERK
REERKRE(PE)ERERAA BB
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERUME iE REER
REEFRE(PE)ERERRA
Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(HK & Macau) Holdings Limited RERTES IEp RERRK
REBRAE(BR)ERERRA
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Overseas — HK HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited Bk T RERRK
EEERREGNERERAA
Indirect subsidiaries
BENELF
Beauty Royal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
EBBRARA ) 28T agent services
RUSEHERERY
Charter Loyal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BLBERARR A 2B agent services
RESERERBRE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) HK HK$100 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
Company Limited B 100/ 7T jewellery
REEEREFB)BRAA HEBRNARE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (Malaysia) ~ Malaysia MYR3,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Sdn. Bhd. SERAET 3,000,000 HEKE
EREATLH
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

EH ZE2020F12A318 L F &
35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. FEME AR Z7EE(Z)
(Continued)
Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
%)
R/ LERRE/ rEEEE
WEARERE EENE a &R ERTRAZLA TEXRK
2020 2019
Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
BERBAR(E)
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (Singapore) — Singapore SGD1,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
Pte. Ltd. N 1,000,000 N3 7T jewellery
HEERRIAKE
EWJ Macau Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
EWSEFIBRAA B 25,0002 P97 jewellery
HERRNIAE
Foremost Resources Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
EXERBRRA ) T agent services
RUSEHERERY
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited HK HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
SERBERAT BE 10,000/ 7 NERE
Mount Win Limited HK HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BRER LA e 1,000,000 1 agent services
RUSEHERERY
Success Wealthy Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BEERAR Bk 18T agent services
RESERSRERS
Trillion Winner Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
TTRBERAA A 1%L agent services
RUSERERERY
Up Success Limited HK HK$300,000 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
EHERAA A 300,000 7 agent services
RUSEHERERY
Wealthy Able Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
HEBRARA 5% 18T agent services
RUSEHERERY

) @ EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 3 5 i &% 2k 20 A F 4 7
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. FEME AR Z5EE(£&)
(Continued)
Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
ERfT
R,/ &/ EERKRE/ AEBRE
WEARER BEHY HRER ERTRAZ LA TEER
2020 2019
Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
BENBAR(£)
Zeal Team Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
2ABRAR N BT agent services
RESERSERERE
REFFRE (LK) BRAA! PRC HK$280,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
i 280,000,000/ 7 jewellery
HEBRRIIAE
E2EFHRERINER A PRC HK$100,500,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
‘:F 100,500,000/ 7T jewellery
HEBRRIAE
rEREXEREAERA PRC HK$73,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
H 73,000,000 7T jewellery
HEERRAFE
# The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises. # ZEWBRARABIIEBELE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities EFHEATENBRARZRITEMERLFE
at the end of the vyear. 7 o
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of EERRBRINEAEEFRBHB AR Z5F
the particulars of all subsidiaries of the Group will be of BFeFERERELR WEXREINHY
excessive length and therefore the list above contains only AEBXENEEEEATEZLHNER
the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affect the GRS

results or assets of the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

St 75 1t 2

For the year ended 31 December
BE12AMBLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TETT TR FER
(note) (note)

GE (Bt &£)

RESULT ¥iE
Revenue N 3,641,845 4,075,124 4,722,248 4110117 2,626,609
(Loss)/profit before BrBiAT (E518)
taxation S ) (59,843) 173,237 318,253 119,324 34,796
Taxation 18 (4,978) (13,546) (53,969) (29,293) (803)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ ARG HA A
attributable to owners EihFE
of the Company (EB8]),/ & F (64,821) 159,691 264,284 90,031 33,993
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FHET FAET FET
(note) (note)
(Bt ) (Bt =£)
ASSETS AND EERERE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 4,408,032 4,673,484 5,969,472 6,086,602 5,773,431
Total liabilities BEE (233,922)  (306,799) (1,504,452) (1,613,575) (1,224,313)
Net Assets BEFE 4174110 4,366,685 4,465,020 4,473,027 4,549,118
Equity attributable to KRARHAA
owners of the Company JE1h =
and total equity R = 4174110 4,366,685 4465020 4,473,027 4,549,118

As at 1 January 2019, the Group had applied HKFRS 16. F20194F1A1E - AEBEBE S BB E
Accordingly, certain comparative information for the years B F165% o A It - & 220164 - 20174F &
ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 may not be 2018%F12A31HIFFEERE T EE R K MEE
comparable to the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 H & = 20194 & 2020F 12 A31H ILFENE T
as such comparative information was prepared under HKAS thEERELE - REARZEZ L EER TR
17. Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 16 BB B @128 F175 G & - HERAE A
are disclosed in the “Significant Accounting Policies” Section. 3R &R E165E MAEL N ST R RN E X
SRR —EHE -
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